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Chairman’s
Statement

ZHANG JIANHONG Chairman
REZR £/
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China’s economy was still in the adjustment stage in 2015, during which the proportion of the secondary
industry gradually declined and the contribution of the tertiary industry to GDP increased gradually. In
this year, China’s overall economic growth slowed down, and the year-on-year GDP growth was only 6.9%,
its lowest since 1990. Affected by the overall economic situation, the overall demand of the fluorine and
silicon industry declined. As the markets of each product in the fluorine and silicon industry were slowly
entering the mature period, the competition in the industry intensified, which resulted in the price decline
and profit squeeze. In the face of such a severe test, the management team of Dongyue Group Limited (the

“Company” or “Dongyue”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) still adhered to taking “learning from

Formosa Plastics” as the direction, developing “automation” and “information technology”, grasping the
market demand and improving the service, so that the Group achieved further development in the adverse
circumstance, realized the annual goals and achieved valuable results.
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Chairman’s Statement

Grow with outstanding achievements in
the adverse circumstance

In 2015, the Group maintained its gross margin growth in the
current broad environment and became a leading enterprise
in the industry, laying a solid foundation for the Group to live
through the adjustment period and transition period. The increase
in gross profit margin in the year greatly reflected the Group'’s
strength, industry position, and market share and greatly raised
the Group’s reputation and influence in the industry, which
provided the basis for the future strategic implementation of the
Group.

Adhere to research and development and
independent innovation

In 2015, the Group had a total of 48 technical transformation
projects, 21 new products (including DF-204S, DF-206 and
other new products), 31 patent applications and 39 patent
authorizations.
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The State Key Laboratory of Fluorinated Functional Membrane
Materials of the Group was approved, which became the only
state-level key laboratory in domestic industry and the first state-
level key laboratory in Zibo City. Dongyue research team became
a “national team”. In addition, the Company was recognized as the
National Fluoride Functional Materials International Cooperation
Demonstration Base. Dr. Zhang Yongming was awarded the
“Meritorious Character Award in 20 years of China Film Industry”.
Dr. Tang Junke was selected into the list of “Taishan Industry
Leader” by the Provincial Science and Technology Department.
The Group’s technological innovation advantages were more
obvious.

In 2015, with a focus on the “two alternatives” and catching
up with the world’s advanced level, the Group’s technology
departments developed 21 new products and new varieties,
such as modified suspension resin DF-161, modified dispersion
resin DF-2048 and 2049, high-speed extrusion FEP, PVDF for solar
backplane membrane, extinction type white carbon black, and
phenyl vinyl silicone oil, which were successfully brought to the
market. Part of these products were mainly the alternatives for
the products of international advanced enterprises, breaking the
product monopoly brought by these enterprises and enabling
the Group to become the pioneer in the domestic production of
important market-demanded materials.
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Chairman’s Statement

“Learning from Formosa Plastics” achieved
important results

The year 2015 is an important year for “learning from Formosa
Plastics”. This year, Dongyue improved its level of information
technology and automation, and optimized its post setting and
staffing through the implementation of “learning from Formosa
Plastics”. Moreover, our branch companies established the
Maintenance Center and DCS Instrument Center. The measures
played an important role in improving the production efficiency

and ensuring the product quality of the Group.
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4. People-oriented and attaching importance

to talents

In 2015, the Group increased the introduction and cultivation of
talents, laying a solid foundation for the future development of the
Group. Externally, the Group established a cooperative relationship
with a number of tertiary institutions, and adopted the policy of
“not seeking to own but seeking to use” to introduce talents by
means of “equity, option, reward and commission”. Internally, the
Group formulated the company’s assessment guidance and the
Group's position promotion measures for cadres and employees,
effectively combined the enterprises development with the
employees’ career design, established a promotion channel for all
employees, and improved their income and treatment. The Group
gave care, security and respect to employees through measures
such as separating the staff from the devices by merging the
central control room and the inspection room together, as well as
renovating and enhancing the washrooms in the plant. At the end
of 2015, the Group implemented the assessment mechanism to
let the talents stand out from the competitions and assessments,
during which the posts of a part of the staff and cadres were
adjusted, to optimize the staff’s performance and working
motivation.

The year 2016 is the first year of the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”,
a year to link the preceding with the following. According to the
content of “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” for fluorine silicon industry,
the Group made appropriate planning and preparation as follows:
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Chairman’s Statement

Continue to be market-oriented

In the face of the current domestic economic situation,
the Group's most important strategy is to seize the market
opportunities and get profit from the market. Therefore,
the Group will strengthen the market analysis and research
in 2016 to correctly develop the market direction. The
Group will also increase product promotion efforts, so that
customers can have a better understanding of our product
technology and quality. Besides, the Group will leverage
the resource advantages to improve the profitability of low-
margin products. We will also take “large output size, large
sales size, large market share, large exports size and big
brands” as the strategy focuses, and coordinate with the
promotion of information marketing and establishment of
the internet sales platform. In addition, we will control the
supply side, and perform strict supervision on the cost and
quality.

Increase investment in scientific research

Dongyue has always been implementing the principle
of independent innovation, vigorously developing new
products, improving production technology, and developing
high-end fluorine-silicon chemical products. In response
to the “Thirteen Five” plan deployment, the Company will
further increase investments in scientific research in 2016,
speed up the progress of the “two alternatives”, enhance
the competitiveness of our technology, and strive to achieve
high corporate efficiency to further promote economic and
social development.

Further promote work of “learning from
Formosa Plastics”

Based on the significant results achieved in the approach
of “learning from Formosa Plastics” in 2015, the Group will
deepen this work in 2016. It will improve the construction
of automation and information, and promote the online
integrated applications of the systems of DCS control,
online monitoring, energy management and equipment
management to effectively reduce production costs, improve
operational efficiency, and ensure product quality.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2015 07



FERESE
Chairman’s Statement

08

o AR A SRS

016FSERHE THRE RELLMNR
EFANERZHETRAE BOA
REBERBIEXE  BBEII(ERE
mit - REIEENERREHRTS -
T2TFEERAREBANBET
L - REVBRE - TmiE IR AEIR LR
BAAEE #ABELUER BIE
BREAITTEBR

B~ hn3E A E R B 2

S ERAE20165F AA R BDE B B IS -
ERIESETENERR  HEAE
R EEENEMAEENE 25
MITH - A BT EE hNE R AR
BEERE)  BREABRNEARER -
5 20T B B B S P R 4 FE O FT
B FEREEHLTOER -
It - 5 B TE & R AR T AR ZX P B SRR

20165F - EEEBRHBE AN - TTER
Oh - EE AN E B G AR 1R
TN FREREEBEREEEEN—
FoAFHEEREREENIZT @ &6
PR =T BEELR  URETE
FRIHAIFIBE ] - TERTIS S ELE 20155
B ERNEE c RERUSHHANE
B EHFHEEDEHM L BSEX
BIZRHE - 4B RIRR MR & H &R A]
BHER -

REEBERAE —2-AFFR

IV. Adjust personnel and job mechanism

In 2016, the Group will adjust the human resources
arrangements such as employee turnover and position
settings, with the aim to improve the overall efficiency,
mobilize working enthusiasm of employees, and provide a
platform for the realization of employee value. The working
details include: defining the functions of the various
positions, discovering and reflecting the value of talents
through employment by competition and work shift systems,
and adjusting the job frame to reduce the situations of job
duplication and redundant staff.

Strengthen internal risk control

The Group will increase the internal risk control in 2076.
In terms of institution, the Group will improve the internal
control system and fill the loopholes; in terms of supervision,
it will increase efforts in supervision and improve execution;
in terms of personnel, it will increase risk knowledge and
internal control management training, to improve personnel’s
risk awareness. The Group has noted the new requirements
of the SEHK on risk disclosure and the management has
attached great importance to this. Thus, the Group will make
a disclosure in strict accordance with the requirements of the
SEHK.

In 2016, the Group will face more severe challenges from
home and abroad, inside and outside the industry and
the Group. The new year will be a crucial year for the
development of the Group. Even under this environmental
pressure, the Group will, with nearly three decades of
development experience as well as its status and capabilities
in the industry, it is expected to continue its impressive
performance in 2015. The Group will face the difficulties
with a new attitude in the new year and achieve greater
breakthroughs, to bring considerable returns to the majority
of shareholders and investors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB7,032,486,000, representing a decrease of 7.46%
over RMB7,599,696,000 of the previous year. The gross profit margin
increase to 16.62% (2014: 16.00%) and the operating results margin
was 12.67% (2014: 11.74%). However, during the year under review, the
Group recorded a one-off write-off in the amount of RMB1,478,200,000
("the write-off of assets”), equivalent to the entire amount of the
RMB1,478,200,000 misappropriated funds of the Group as referred to
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements in this report. As a
result, for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded loss
before tax of approximately RMB796,717,000 (2014: profit before tax of
RMB691,030,000), and net loss of approximately RMB680,937,000 (2014:
net profit of RMB496,996,000), while consolidated loss attributable
to the Company’s owners was approximately RMB690,479,000 (2014:
profit of RMB483,276,000). Basic loss per share was RMB0.33 (2014:
basic earnings of RMB0.23). The Board of Directors of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.05 (2014:
HK$0.09) per share to the shareholders whose name appear on the
register of members of the Company on 31 July 2017.
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the year ended 31 December 2014:

BZ2015512831BLLEE HBE014F1NANALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 For the year ended 31 December 2014
(6= XE gEEAE Hegs XE RERNE
Operation Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERRLEDE Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AR®TRT | ARBTR ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT Polymers 1,952,624 181,247 9.28% 2,152,054 364,213 16.92%
HiknE Organic Silicone 1,443,354 (28,873) (2.00%) 1514,114 (31,805) (2.10%)
SO Refrigerants 2,861,438 372,158 13.01% 3,228,747 367,230 11.37%
—EF ik  BE % Dichloromethane,
(TpvC]) Rfei Polyvinyl Chloride (“PVC")

and Liquid Alkali 981,646 54,046 5.51% 1,195,081 62,944 527%
FEsE Property development 619,233 200,133 32.32% 525,087 145,955 27.80%
Hth Others 689,959 18,138 2.63% 672,440 20,784 3.09%
8,548,254 796,849 9.32% 9,287,523 929,321 10.01%
W DEEEE Less: Inter-segment sales (1,515,768) - = (1,687,827) - -
ma Consolidated 7,032,486 796,849 11.33% 7,599,696 929,321 12.23%

W R EEEEDT Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results
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During the year under review, world industrial production grew slowly,
bulk commodity prices were declining and total trade remained in
the doldrums. Impact of economic structural adjustment made by
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") continued and sluggish
domestic economic growth would still affect the overall growth of
market demand, thus causing negative impact on domestic sales of
bulk chemical products. In this case, since the overcapacity problem in

fluorine and silicone industry remained unresolved, the Group did not

have much new capacity into operation during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group recorded loss before tax of approximately
RMB796,717,000. Due to the influence of misappropriation of funds of
RMB1,478,200,000, the overall profitability of the Group was severely
affected, which is the main cause of the losses of the Group. However,
excluding the impact brought by the write-off of RMB1,478,200,000, the
consolidated profit of the Group did not reduce much compared with
last year. Excluding the effect of assets written off, the profit before tax
of the Group was approximately RMB681,483,000, about 1.38% lower
than that in the last year (RMB691,030,000),which is mainly due to the
decrease in sales revenue brought by market conditions. In response
to the market situation, the Group continued to take advantages
of the industrial chain to maintain the lower cost and remain its
market competitiveness. On the other hand, the Group insisted on
independent innovation and maintained market competitiveness with
its product quality. Therefore, to a certain extent, the overall gross profit
margin improved slightly compared with last year. Among all, business
sectors, including the refrigerant and real estate business can maintain
stable performances. Excluding impact from the write-off of assets, the
operating results of the refrigerant business recorded a slight increase
while the real estate business even recorded in a relatively large
increase. In addition, the organic silicone business decreased compared
with last year. In terms of external investment, CMIG equity investments
have produced returns. Besides, the performance drops obviously
in business of polymers segment, mainly due to the sharp decline
in product prices in the market and the low gross margins in overall

market.
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Refrigerants

During the year, the refrigerants segment’s total revenue (including
inter-segment sales) was RMB2,861,438,000, decreased by 11.38%
compared with RMB3,228,747,000 last year, accounting for 26.56% of
the Group’s consolidated revenue (excluding inter-segment sales). The
refrigerants segment recorded profit of RMB372,158,000, increased
by 1.34% compared with last year's RMB367,230,000. Although the
refrigerant’s market price dropped during the year, the Group actively
explored new markets, increased sales and controlled cost, to maintain
the growth trend in the segment.

This segment includes the revenues generated from the manufacturing
and sales of traditional refrigerants products (mainly R22), new green
and environmental-friendly refrigerants products (mainly R32, R125,
R134a and R410a and so forth) and other types of refrigerants products
(mainly R142b and R152a and so forth). The Group produces and sells
refrigerants products externally to both domestic and international
customers, and internally (mainly R22 and R410b) for its Polymers
business segment.

As the backbone refrigerants product of the Group with the largest
production capacity in the world, R22 is the most widely used
refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used in household appliances.
Apart from that, it has been one of the key raw materials for the
production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream
fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant
mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a) to replace
R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal replacing refrigerant which
has been widely applied in inverter air conditioners and other green
home appliances. R134a is broadly used in the refrigeration and air-
conditioning systems in automobile air conditioners, while R152a is
another key refrigerant product of the Group which can also be used as
blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that
R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature controller medium, or
intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw
materials for the production of VDF.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by other
green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped granting
approval to the building up of new R22 capacity. Starting from 2013,
the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for the
sales of R22 as a refrigerant or ozone depleting substances for all of the
domestic R22 producers. As a result, the year-on-year growth of the
sales volume of R22 was limited and the Group's sales income of R22
recorded a slight decrease as compared to the previous year due to its
price drop.

Due to R22 restrictions, domestic appliance manufacturer in China
began to explore models that use other green refrigerants so that other
green refrigerants’ price and demand would increase. Therefore, the
refrigerant products of the Group such as R410a and R32 witnessed
revenue rise.

During the year, the momentum of the domestic car market
contributed to the increase of R134a product sales, improving the
Group's earnings from R134a.

Fluoropolymer

During the year, fluorine-containing polymers segment’s total revenue
was RMB1,952,624,000, decreased by about 9.27% compared with
last year's figure — RMB2,152,054,000, accounting for 27.77% of total
revenue of the Group (excluding inter-segment sales). The segment
recorded profit of RMB181,247,000, decreased by 50.24% compared
with RMB364,213,000 of last year. The decline in the segment results
related to the decrease in domestic market activity and overall lower
demand leads to a drop in market prices of fluorine-containing polymer,
affecting the performance of this segment.

The polymers segment, together with organic silicone segment is
regarded as a China new material industry that has huge potential,
business prospects and government support. During the year, the
Group continued to implement established policies in the development
and marketing of new products, bringing new potential to enhance
profitability for the Group.
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The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
and ageing and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material
and can also be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which
can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and
electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic
fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to produce various
fine chemicals). Furthermore, the Refrigerants segment of the Group
supplied R22 and R142b as the raw materials for the production of
a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including FEP
(modified materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly
used in the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat
shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM (Fluorine Rubber,
a specialized fluorinated material produced with VDF, HFP and TFE,
which is mainly used in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery
and petro-chemistry because of its superior mechanical property, and
excellent oil, chemical and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made
with R142b to produce VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin,
fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding
material) and VDF, in which Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Material
Co., Ltd. ("Huaxia Shenzhou”) has been engaging. Other fluorinated
fine chemicals, including PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another major
production category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

In 2015, as influenced by the market, fluorine-containing polymers
segment of the Group did not build up higher capacity. Therefore,
segmental direction was set to develop new products, namely, high-
end fluoropolymer products. 12 new relevant products were developed
which include DF-2046A and FEVE. In addition, there were a number of
projects to improve product performance and quality.
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Organic Silicone

During the year, the revenue (including inter-segment sales) coming
from the Organic Silicone business segment decreased by 4.67%
to approximately RMB1,443,354,000 this year from approximately
RMB1,514,114,000 last year, accounting for 20.52% (excluding inter-
segment sales) of the consolidated revenue of the Group. During
the year, this segment recorded a loss of RMB28,873,000, or 9.22%
lower than that of RMB31,805,000 in last year. At present, the organic
silicone market continued the trend of overcapacity, price decline and
profit squeeze, which resulted in loss in this segment. Nonetheless,
we managed to reduce loss from last year through active market
exploration as well as product technique and quality enhancement.

This segment mainly includes the production and sales of DMC
(upstream organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw materials
to produce deep proceeded mid-stream and downstream silicone
products, such as silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins),
107 Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively
referred to as “Silicone Rubbers”, deep proceeded silicone rubber
products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key raw material for producing
Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-end downstream
products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils. Named as “Industrial
MSG”, organic silicone is widely applied in military, aviation, automotive,
electronic, construction and other industries, mainly in the form of
additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and sealants and
are a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group initially produces
silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally generated
chloromethane and further processes them to become silicone
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces Silicone Rubbers and other organic silicone products). The
Group can also be able to produce and generate other by-products and
high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils
through its production processes.

Similar to that in fluoropolymer segment, the Group's strategy in the
Organic Silicone segment is to devise and develop new downstream
products with higher profit margins, such as 107 glue and other low-
viscosity products, and improve and reform other products technically,
laying foundation for cost reduction, technical index improvement and
segmental loss decline.
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Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During this year, the segment revenue (including inter-segment
sales) was approximately RMB981,646,000, down by 17.86% from
RMB1,195,081,000 in 2014, and accounting for 13.91% of the Group's
consolidated revenue (excluding inter-segment sales). During the year,
this segment recorded profit of RMB54,046,000, decreased by 14.14%
compared with RMB62,944,000 of last year, mainly due to the falling
prices of bulk chemical products, which is under the influence of the
overall domestic market.

This segment includes two major auxiliary products (dichloromethane
and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants Segment of the Group and the
production and sales revenue of PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic
chemical product from the production of the methane chloride (essential
chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic silicone
products), and used in the textile, power and materials industries.
Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used
to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. The
Group engaged in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic
polymer applied in the construction industry to replace traditional
building materials). The production of refrigerants products generates
a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is one of the basic raw materials
for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s PVC production can ensure
production synergies and increasing economic value generated from a
self-sufficient business chain.

During the year, due to the fluctuations in real estate market, the
revenue of PVC product decreased to a certain extent. Affected by the
overall domestic market, both the demand and price of bulk chemical
products dropped, which brought considerable impact on the revenue
of dichloromethane products.

Property Development - Dongyue International
Project (the “Project”)

The Project comprises, among others, residential portion of two parcels
of land which are adjacent to each other. They are located at the west
of Liuquan North Road, the north of Huantai Avenue and the south of
Gongyuan Road, Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, the
PRC with a total site area of 189,381 square metres. The residential
portion is 157,187 square metres, upon which the Group planned to
construct 23 residential blocks with a total planned gross floor areas of
approximately 296,000 square metres. The Project comprises five phases
which are expected to be completed by the end of 2017. As of the end
of December 2015, the Group, owning 100% interest in the Project, had
been constructing all phases of the Project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group commenced pre-sale of the phase 1 starting from the
financial year of 2013, and phase 2, phase 3 and phase 4 starting from
the financial year of 2014. During the year, the Group sold a total of 525
residential units with a total of approximately 67,820 square metres.
The segment revenue and the segment profit have been recorded as
RMB619,233,000 and RMB200,133,000 respectively.

Others

This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other by-products of the various operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid, Bromine, and so on.

During the year, the revenue (including inter-segment sales) for this
segment increased by 2.61% to RMB689,959,000 from RMB672,440,000
of the last year. The segment recorded profit of RMB18,138,000,
decreased by 12.73% compared with RMB20,784,000 of last year, mainly
due to the complicated domestic market situation, which led to a
considerable decline in the demand for and prices of bulk chemical
products. The price of the anhydrous hydrogen fluoride decreased
significantly, but the price of the bromine increased noticeably, so the
overall revenue was nearly the same as that of the last year.

During the year, the Group gained proceeds of RMB100 million from
its subscription for 1 billion shares in China Minsheng Investment
Corp Limited (“CMIC") for an aggregate amount of RMB1 billion (the
"Subscription”). The Group held that the Subscription will provide
the Group (indirectly through CMIC) with potential investment and
acquisition opportunities in industries and enterprises with growth
potentials, which, together with its other equity investments, allows
the Group to capitalize on the financial leverage for the purpose of
diversifying its business risks, while maintaining the focus of its business
and strengths in its core fluorochemical business.
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year, the distribution and selling expenses increased by
0.03% to RMB251,284,000 from RMB251,209,000 of the previous year. As
a result of stringent cost control measures imposed by the Group, the
amount of distribution and selling expenses remained steady.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the administrative expenses decreased by 9.89% to
RMB261,116,000 from RMB289,791,000 of the previous year, mainly
attributable to the improved operational efficiency of the Company
after the work of “learning from Formosa Plastics”.

Assets Written Off

During the year, an one-off amount of RMB1,478.2 million, equivalent
to the entire amount of the RMB1,478.2 million misappropriated funds
of the Group, has been fully written off as a conservative measure. The
details of the assets written off were also disclosed in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

The RMB1,478.2 million misappropriated funds of the Group relate to
(i) wealth management investments of RMB978.2 million due from
a group of nine companies (collectively, the "MC Companies”) as at
31 December 2015 (the “Receivables”) and (ii) two bank deposits of
RMB500 million placed by two subsidiaries of the Group in the Bank
of Communications Company Limited, Qingdao branch, in the PRC
as security deposits for the bank to lend the same amount of loans
to two of the MC Companies (the “Long-term Deposits”) (collectively,
the "Alleged Financial Transactions”). The Long-term Deposits were
forfeited by the bank due to default on repayment by the two relevant
MC Companies. As at the date of this report, the Receivables and the
relevant interest accrued thereon have not been repaid. The Company
considers the Alleged Financial Transactions to be unauthorised and
misappropriation of funds with the involvement of former employees
of the Group.
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Development of the Investigation by the Public Security Authority
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 February
2016, the Company reported the incident to the local public security
authority in the PRC (the “Public Security Authority”) immediately after
it was informed by the bank on 2 November 2015 that the balance of
the Long-term Deposits was zero.

The Company was informed by the Public Security Authority on 2
February 2016 that the approval for arresting the suspect had been
granted by the prosecutorial authority on the same date. The suspect
is Li Bin, the former PRC financial controller of the Company before
all his powers and functions of office were dismissed on 3 November
2015 by the Company. The suspect had ceased to be employed by the
Company since 29 January 2016 due to his suspected criminal charge.
There were another two former employees of the Group, namely Zhang
Xiaolin and Gong Xiaolei (collectively, the “Cashier Officers”), who were
being investigated by the Public Security Authority.

On 22 August 2016, the Company was further informed by the Public
Security Authority that 14 individuals including employees of the
relevant banks, responsible persons of the MC Companies and former
employees of the Group had been arrested by the Public Security
Authority or released on bail pending trial. As at the date of this report,
apart from Li Bin and the Cashier Officers, no other personnel of the
Group were involved in the Alleged Financial Transactions. The flow
of funds regarding the misappropriated funds in the total amount of
RMB1,478.2 million had been ascertained and such flow of funds is not
connected with the management of the Group.

On 3 February 2017, the Public Security Authority has informed the
Company's independent committee that their investigation in relation
to the Alleged Financial Transactions has basically completed. The
matter would move to court proceedings and the suspects would be
prosecuted.

On 28 February 2017, a public trial was held in the People’s Court of
Huantai Count in connection with the case of misappropriation of
funds involving Li Bin and others. The prosecutors had also initiated
public prosecutions against the relevant personnel in the Bank of
Communications Company Limited, Qingdao branch.
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Forensic review report

In February 2016, the Company set up an independent committee,

which engaged an independent counsel which in turn engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers Management Consulting (Shanghai) Limited
(the “Independent Forensic Expert”) on 10 March 2016 to perform
an independent review to the Alleged Financial Transactions. The
Independent Forensic Expert published a forensic report regarding
its investigation on 13 September 2016. A summary of the findings of

the report was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30
September 2016.

Remedial actions taken and proposed by the Company

()

(ii)

(ii)

the Company has appointed one of the big four accounting firms
on 12 December 2016 as its internal control adviser (the “Internal
Control Adviser”). The scope of work of the Internal Control Adviser
includes conducting a review of, among others, the treasury
functions, financial and accounting information reporting and
communications and procedures on inside information disclosures
of the Group, and to provide recommendations to the Company.
As at the date of this report, the Internal Control Adviser has been
completed the review. After review of the contents and results of
the internal control assessment report prepared by the Internal
Control Adviser, and taking into consideration the remedial
measures having been taken according to confirmation of the
management, the Board believes that the Company has adequate
procedures in place to fulfill its obligation under the Listing
Rules. More details of the review was disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 April 2017.

the Company will arrange training for all members of the Board
and senior management of the Company on compliance rules and
regulations applicable to listed companies in Hong Kong;

the Company has formulated internal policies and a procedure
manual on inside information to be circulated to all employees of
the Group and the department heads of each of the key operating
subsidiaries of the Company will be delegated the responsibility
to provide introductory training to their subordinates; and
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the Company has formulated internal policies and procedures
on financial and accounting information reporting and
communications.

On 19 January 2017, Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd.
(the “Plaintiff”), a subsidiary of the Company filed a civil lawsuit
at the Zibo Intermediate People’s Court in the PRC against Bank
of Communication Company Limited, Qingdao branch, Bank of
Communications Company Limited, north branch of Qingdao
city, Shandong Heng Tai Jie Neng New Material Technology Co
Ltd (one of the nine MC companies) and Li Bin (collectively, the
"Defendants”). The Defendants are alleged to have colluded to
jeopardise the interests of the Plaintiff. A summary of the lawsuit
was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 January
2017.

Finance Costs

During the year, the finance costs increased by 3.59% to RMB208,663,000
from RMB201,441,000 of the previous year. This was mainly attributable to

the increase in the amount of the borrowings of the Group during the year.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's aggregate

capital expenditure was approximately RMB677,769,000 (2014:
RMB675,754,000). The Group’s capital expenditure is mainly for the
acquisition of fixed assets including the equipment and facilities for

the improving technical and upgrading the intelligence system of the

Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December
2015, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB5,072,375,000,
representing a decrease of 14.00% compared with that as at 31
December 2014, which is mainly attributable to the asset written
off of RMB1,478.2 million during the year. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group's bank balances and cash totaled RMB1,467,426,000 (31
December 2014: RMB1,345,212,000). During the year under review,
the Group generated a total of RMB564,191,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2014: RMB1,532,713,000) cash inflow from its operating
activities. The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
1.07 (31 December 2014: 1.38).

Considering the effect of incident of misappropriation of funds, the
asset written off of RMB1,478.2 million did not undermine the healthy
working capital management of the Group while the Group still
maintained sufficient cashflow on the production, supply and sale
activities of the Group. Taking the above figures into account, together
with the available bank balances and cash, the unutilized banking
credit facilities and support from its banks as well as its sufficient
operational cash flows, the management is confident that the Group
will have adequate resources to settle any debts and to finance its daily
operational and capital expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled a total of
4,776,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”). After
the cancellation of the Buyback Shares, the number of issued shares of
the Company was decreased to 2,113,391,455.

As at 31 December 2015, the borrowings of the Group totalled
RMB3,419,366,000 (31 December 2014: RMB3,276,524,000). The gearing
ratio® of the Group was 27.79% (31 December 2014: 24.67%)
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The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2015, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,587,612,000
which are wholly repayable after one year but not exceeding five
years. The current portion of borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB1,831,754,000. The Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest
rates and floating rates. The weighted average effective interest rates
on floating rate borrowings and fixed rate borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were 5.84% (2014: 6.48%) and 6.21% (2014:
6.19%) per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2015, 30.54% (31
December 2014: 40.00%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings were denominated in
RMB, HK and US dollars, amounting to approximately RMB3,184,900,000,
approximately HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB100,536,000) and approximately US$20,625,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB133,930,000) respectively.

Group Structure

During the year, there has been no material change in the structure of
the Group.

Notes:
(1 Current Ratio = Current Assets <+ Current Liabilities
) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowing — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately RMB319,591,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB249,503,000), and bank deposits of RMB113,214,000 (31 December
2014: RMB185,145,000), which were pledged to secure the Group's
borrowings and the bills payable of the Group.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from
overseas customers and when settling purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

The Group entered into forward contacts for managing certain risks
arising from foreign currency transactions. In order to reduce the risk
of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the foreign
currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign
currencies payment schedule in the near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 6,297 employees in total as at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: 6,824). The Group implemented its remuneration
policy, bonus and share option schemes based on the performance
of the Group and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as
social insurance and pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.

In addition, the Group also adopted a share option scheme as a
long term incentive to the Directors and eligible employees. The
emolument policy for the Directors and senior management of the
Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Group's performance, individual performance and comparable market
conditions.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 57, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has 30 years
of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of
Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone,
and a director of Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue
Precision Chemicals, all of which are the Company's subsidiaries. In
addition, Mr. Zhang is the director and the chairman of the Strategy
Committee of China Minsheng Investment Company Limited (FFEIR
ERERMDBRAR]) . Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of political affairs
with a postgraduate degree in economics. He had served the People’s
Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& E
T 78 ), Deputy Director of China Fluorine and Silicon Material Industry
Association (R EISEM B TE#HE) and a standing committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Shandong Province (LLUE A1) . He has obtained the honorary titles
of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy
(Fourth Session), Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in
the International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine

“Capital CEO" ("BARA&").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 60, was appointed as the executi\;e director of the
Company in July 2006. He is formerly a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu
is the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macro-
Link Holding Limited (“Macrolink Holding”) and is a director of Macro-
Link International Investment Co. Ltd. (“Macrolink International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Fu is a senior economist
with a postgraduate degree in business administration. Mr. Fu has over
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25 years of experience in corporate management and business strategy
planning. Mr. Fu was the deputy director of the Economic Committee
of Liling City, Hunan Province, head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of
Liling City, Hunan Province and the vice chairman of the 10th China
Federation of Industry & Commerce, and is a committee member of
the Chinese People Political & Consultative Conference, the honorary
chairman of Chamber of Commerce of Beijing and Hunan Enterprises
(LB EEE), vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of
Commerce (FREBIREMEE) and director of political affairs committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (2 BT B2 B
BZ B€) . Mr. Fu has also been awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding
Entrepreneurs in China Certificate” in 2003 by the China Professional
Managers Association. Mr. Fu is the director of Macro-Link Property
Joint Stock Company Limited (¥ B TEBERHER R F), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu owns a direct
10.63% and an indirect 75% interest in Macrolink Holding, which wholly
owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a substantial
shareholder of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (formerly known
as "JLF Investment Company Limited”) , a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangqi, aged 67, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and
its predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of
experience in the chemical industry and is a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone,
Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Precision
Chemicals and was a director of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are
the Company’s subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals and currently the president of the Group. He is a
senior officer of political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing
the Labour Force of Zibo City” in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.

Mr. CUI Tongzheng, aged 55, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Group and its predecessors since November
1988. Mr. Cui has over 20 years of experience in the corporate financial
management. Mr. Cui holds a bachelor degree from China Statistics
Cadre College as well as a MBA diploma from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 44, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is the controller of listed company
division of Macrolink Holding, as well as an executive director of New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited and Macro-Link Property Joint Stock
Company Limited (¥ TBIER M AR QE)).

Mr. FENG Jianjun (JF3E) , aged 52, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2015. Mr. Feng has approximately 30
years of experience in banking, trust and asset management. In his early
years, Mr. Feng served at Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Hunan
branch); Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Trust Investment
Company (Hunan branch) and China Huarong Asset Management Co.
Ltd (Hunan branch). Mr. Feng is currently a vice president of Macro-
Link Holding Limited. Mr. Feng is a committee member of Hunan
Federation of Industry Chamber (J#iFI%& T B¢ ), the executive
chairman of Beijing Hunan Chamber of Commerce, a member of
Hunan Calligraphers’ Association and the vice chairman of Changsha
Calligraphers’ Association. Mr. Feng graduated from Hunan University in
1996.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified
public accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987.
Mr. Ting is @ member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political
Consultative Conference, Fujian Province. Mr. Ting is currently a non-
executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
and an independent non-executive director of six companies listed
on the HKSE, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
(formerly known as “JLF Investment Company Limited”), Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and
China SCE Property Holdings Limited. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Ting
does not have any other directorships in listed companies during the
past 3 years.
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Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 74, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has
been with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He was the technician, project
leader and deputy director of research department of Shen Yang
Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang Chemical
Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research Centre.
Mr. Yue has taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of Chemical
Technology, the standing chairman and professorate senior engineer of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry, and
an Independent Director of Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yue is currently the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology Co., Ltd.,, a company listed on
the Growth Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and the
honorary standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine
and Silicone Material Industry.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree in chemical engineering from East
China Institute of Technology in 1982. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar
Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer
and director of National Organic Silicone Engineering and Technological
Research Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision
and Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicone
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicone
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently vice chairman of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry, director of the Expert
Committee and the Professional Committee of Silicone, and editor of
Silicone Material.
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Senior management

Mr. ZHOU Guangsheng, aged 61, is the deputy president of the Group.
He has been serving the Group since March 1988 and is responsible for
production, safety and environmental protection. He served as a deputy
head of production plant and deputy production general manager from
April 1989 to March 2004. He served as the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals from March 2004 to March 2006. He has been
serving as the vice president of the Group since March 2006 until now.

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 53, has worked for the Group since
September 1996 and is responsible for technical matters and projects.
He is currently the general manager of Dongyue Chemicals, the general
manager and a director of Dongyue Organic Silicone, and the chairman
of Dongyue F&S. In 2005, he was awarded the title of Outstanding
Scientific Researcher of National Chemical Industry and in 2006, he
obtained the award for “Outstanding Worker of National Chlor-alkali
Industry”. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor degree in Chinese Literature.

Mr. ZENG Hongzhi, aged 53, has been serving the Group since
October 2003 and is formerly a chief officer of the Group’s safety
and environment protection department and the Group’'s corporate
administration department, as well as the deputy general manager of
Dongyue Polymers. He has been serving as the general manager of
Dongyue Polymers since February 2009 until now.

Company secretary

Mr. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 35, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has over 13 years of work experience in accounting,
corporate finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory
divisions of a leading international accounting firm; merger and
acquisition team of a Hong Kong listed blue-chip company; finance and
accounting; and strategic investment divisions of two listed companies
in Hong Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of
business administration, majoring in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws
from the University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 71.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 (six months ended 30 June
014: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.05 per share (the “Final Dividend”) (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.04 per share) (2014: HK$0.09 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.07 per share), in respect of the year 2015, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (the
"Register”) on 31 July 2017. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval
of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM") to be held on 26 July 2017

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 21 July 2017 to 26 July 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 July 2017
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Report of the Directors

The Register will be closed from 1 August to 3 August 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
31 July 2017.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 74.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB2,150,901,424, of which HK$105,908,378 (approximately equivalent
to RMB94,258,452) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE"), a total of 4,776,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”) at a price range of HKS$1.67
to HKS$1.79 per share. The aggregate consideration for the Buyback
Shares is approximately HK$3,646,000, which was funded from internal
resources of the Company. The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled
on 24 July and 7 September 2015.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Share options
Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution
of all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the
“Scheme”), the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group, for the recognition of
their contribution of the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares.
According to the Scheme, the board of Directors (the “Board”) may,
at its discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for Shares of the Company, which when aggregated with any
other share option scheme, shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number
of Shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the Shares first
commence on the HKSE unless further shareholders’ approval had been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Scheme. The total
number of Shares in issue and to be issued upon exercise of all option
under the Scheme and any other schemes (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the “Offer”) must be taken up
within 28 days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as
consideration. The exercise price of the share option will be determined
at the highest of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in
the HKSE's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the Offer; (i) the closing price of Shares as stated
in the HKSE’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares. The total number of Shares which may
fall to be issued under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in
aggregate, exceed 208,000,000 which represents 10% of the total issued
share capital as at the listing date unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained. The share options are exercisable at any time during a
period of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Scheme and any conditions of grant as
may be stipulated by the Board. Unless terminated by the Company by
resolution in general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 16 November 2007.
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Report of the Directors

As at 31 December 2015, particulars of the options granted to certain
Directors and employees of the Group under the Scheme are set out

below:
R20155 R20155
1818 RER RER 12A31R
] P30 (x:d RITHE HE REAH TEHER TEEEX
Balance Outstanding
as at Lapsed  Exercised as at
S8E Name or Category 1 January during during 31 December Exercise Date of Exercisable  Exercisable
#ENER of participant 2015 theyear theyear 2015 Price Grant from until
i ()
HKS  (Note)
BTES. Executive Directors:
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong
ERait Tranche 1 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011F6A1H 201286718 201656718
TJune 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
EH Tranche 2 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 8.13 2011F6A1H 2013F6A1H 2016%F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
F=Ht Tranche 3 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011F6A18 2014F6 18 2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
I Tranche 4 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 8.13 2011F6RA1H 2015F6A1H 2016%F6H1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1June 2016
EsnE Mr. Liu Chuangi
ERi Tranche 1 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011%F6A1H 2012F6A18 2016F6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
FIH Tranche 2 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011F6A18 20136418 2016%F651H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
2= Tranche 3 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011F6A18 2014618 20166718
1June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
Fmi Tranche 4 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011%6A1H 2015%6A 18 2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
ERBSE Mr. Cui Tongzheng
g4t Tranche 1 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 8.13 2011F6A1H 20126818 2016%6A1H
TJune 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
2N Tranche 2 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011F6A1H 20136718 2016%F671H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
24 Tranche 3 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 8.13 2011F6A1H 2014%F6A 18 2016%F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
EJf Tranche 4 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011F6A1H 2015F6A1H 2016%F6A1H

1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
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#2015% #2015%
1B1H RER RER  12A31A
g 3 it AT e RUBH TEHER TEEER
Balance Outstanding
as at Lapsed  Exercised as at
SHE Name or Category 1 January during during 31 December Exercise Date of Exercisable  Exercisable
HERER of participant 2015  theyear theyear 2015 Price Grant from until
(W)
HKS  (Note)
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian
Eaid Tranche | 50,000 - - 50,000 813 011E6A18 201256A1R 20165618
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
Etiin Tranche 2 50,000 - - 50,000 813 2011F6A1H 201356418 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 50,000 - - 50,000 813 2011F6A18 201496718 201656818
1June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
FMH Tranche 4 50,000 - - 50,000 813 201156A18 2015%6718 201656A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
E5: Employees:
A% In aggregate
£ Tranche 1 27325000 (1,350,000) - 25975000 813 2011F6A1H 201256418 201656718
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
EH Tranche 2 27325000 (1,350,000) - 25,975,000 813 2011%F6A1H 2013%F6A18 2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 27325000 (1,350,000) - 25975000 813 2011E6A18 201456/1R 20165618
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
Emit Tranche 4 27325000 (1,350,000) - 25975000 813 2011F6A1H 20156418 201656718
1June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
141,300,000 (5400,000) - 135,900,000
MIEE - SRR H RS2 IR KT ERER78ETT - Note: The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant is HK$7.98
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per Share.
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Report of the Directors

The fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme were
determined and measured using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model on 1 June 2011. The significant inputs into the model were the
exercise price shown above, volatility of 64.65%, dividend yield of 3.68%,
an expected option life of 3.5 to 5 years and on annual risk-free interest
rates of 1.00%, 1.18%, 1.34% and 1.49%. As any changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in the
opinion of professional appraiser, the valuation model for the share
options granted does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of the share options.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are
set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted to any person under the Scheme since its adoption.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan
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Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr. Wu Tao (resigned on 13 March 2015)

Mr. Feng Jianjun (appointed on 13 March 2015)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yue Rundong and two newly appointed
directors (effective from 2 May 2017) including Mr. Zhang Bishu and
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Report of the Directors

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options” in
this report, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 29.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 46 to 64.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2015 37



B8RS

Report of the Directors

R

Disclosure of interests

(a) EERFTETHAENKRK ~ HE  (a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

RO R EERNESR KA positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

R2015F12A318 » ARBEFEREETR As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
AB REEE BT AR QR E g Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
FE(TE B EEALMEEMN((EELEE respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
B&H D EXVER) IR - BREEIRGD RE#ESE of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
REA RIE S A NS EXVEEI R E of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which

89 EEME AN T R AT T RS S AR were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
(BEREBE RS IEGEEE RSk to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
FEAEEMEE DAL RBEEEY short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken

HAE 5 5535214 %

Eek=9iN AL Soip Uil
Mg EORE i*ﬁﬁftmﬁé‘ﬁ)\é$iﬁﬁ

under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for

_)z = =N
: %x%ﬁ'}ﬂ‘i O B AMER Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
PRIVE B £ EX R Code”) to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

E=pE EEME RONABBRDEE HERITRABSL

Number of Shares % of issued

Name of Director Nature of interest or underlying Shares share capital

RERTE DEER 178,277,273 (L) 8.44 (1)
Mr. Zhang Jianhong Corporate interest!”

Eamtkn 20,447,636 (L) 0.97 (L)

BELLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

2EHxEE
Mr. Liu Chuanqi

ERBELE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

RESTE
Mr. Zhang Jian

382 REEEBRAA =

Beneficial interest

hEER 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (L)
Corporate interest®?

R 75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
Corporate interest®
BEmiEms 19,853,454 (L) 0.94 (L)

Beneficial interest

PEERY 156,852,363 (L) 742 (L)
Corporate interest®
B 10,162,180 (L) 048 (L)

Beneficial interest

EaniEn 597,091 (L) 0.03 (1)
Beneficial interest

~AEEH
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-
Link Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink
Holding, a company owned by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung
Shek”) as to 75% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%, respectively, wholly
owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao
Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4)  Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

(5) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to
the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.
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b) TERFRHEMALTARKRS - 8B  (b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s
BROREEZSNEZRAE interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

R2015F12A31H » A RBESEREETT As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors and
BABFATA » THAL(WLIERRBNES the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not
B F EITHA B )RAR B8 A% 7 M8 B X being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
DHREACHENRIBERE S REERAZE336 interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
BRETHFENELMRSREES REE K of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
BIEXVERE 2 R ZE 37 BHIE XA M AR R EE under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed
KRR IORRE to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

XV of the SFO:

REER REEME RO KAABROEE HERITRABSL
Number of shares % of issued

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest or underlying Shares share capital

FTEERG R PR EmgEml 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (L)

Macrolink International Beneficial interest™

ETEME EEERO 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (1)

Macrolink Industrial Corporate interest!"

T R R 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (L)

Macrolink Holding Corporate interest!”

£A EER 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (L)

Cheung Shek Corporate interest”

BXErt DR 616,646,818 (L) 29.18 (L)

Mrs. Xiao Wenhui Corporate interest!”

Dongyue Team Limited EmfEm? 178,277,273 (L) 844 (L)

Dongyue Team Limited Beneficial interest®

Dongyue Initiator Limited EnEme 156,852,363 (L) 742 (L)

Dongyue Initiator Limited Beneficial interest®
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Report of the Directors

These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn
is wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company
owned by Cheung Shek as to 75% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%,
respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan
and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and
33.33%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in

Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position
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() M2015F12A31HRAAREBHMAE (<) Interests in other members
December 2015

ERFNES

RATMBAREE

Name of the
Company'’s subsidiary

ZHERARANEERREE

Name of substantial shareholder
of such subsidiary

Nature of interest

of the Group as at 31

EREENBE QR
BRITRE
AMEAB DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

such subsidiary

IR REREMEBRAF]
(TRERE])

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S")

AERHREZBERLCTIERAA

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine

Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

FREEFRERR AT
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

REREHEEXARAF
(IREREEX])

RERERABELIERAR
Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

W RERESO @M BRAE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.
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WRESFRMIRERR AT

Shandong Hi Tech Investment Co., Ltd.

TR E IEREBR AR
Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd.

FETEREBRAR

Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd.

HEREXREBRAR
(IFEMEXIRE ]

Macro-Link Asset Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Macrolink Asset Investment”)
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Report of the Directors

Note:

(1) Macrolink Asset Investment is a 40% equity holder in Dongying Dongyue
Salt which, in turn, owns 59.21% of Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co., Ltd., with the remaining 25% and 15.79% owned by
the Company and Dongying Hai Run Investment LLP. Consequently,
Macrolink Asset Investment indirectly owns more than 10% of Dongying
Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2015, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 8.51%
— five largest suppliers combined 19.07%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.59%
— five largest customers combined 5.64%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Connected transactions

Save as disclosed below, during the year, the Group had not entered
into connected transactions that are subject to be reported under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 not falling under Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

015FNFHABERS FE LR BEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2015 Annual Cap Actual
(AREBET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
MRLHEEERE T 2EAZRE Framework agreement for the purchase of 104.7 27.0
wE((REREHEERE]) industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue
(B3E) Salt (the "DDS Agreement”) (Note)
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RE RFTEBEIR R R AR H80% M 20% R ©
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Note: The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group's
production of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material
for the Group's refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production).
Dongying Dongyue Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an associate
of one of the Company’s executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an associate of
the Company's substantial shareholder, Macrolink International. Macrolink Asset
Investment is held as to 80% by Macrolink Holding and 20% by Cheung Shek.

On 31 December 2013, Dongyue F&S entered into the Renewed DDS
Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt for three years to 31 December
2016. Details of the Renewed DDS Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 31 December 2013.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid by
means of bank remittance, bill of exchange or other agreed payment method(s)
with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms which will be
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with reference
to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no less favourable
than that offered to independent third parties. There is no provision in the
Renewed DDS Agreement and the Second Renewed DDS Agreement requiring
the Group to exclusively source industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue Salt.
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Report of the Directors

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 April 2017
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
"Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To the
best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has adopted
and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code") during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report,
except for deviation regarding the number of board meetings held and
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer, the details of which

have been disclosed in the relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
this report, except that Dr. Wu Tao resigned from his office as the
Company's Executive Director with effect from 13 March 2015 and that
Mr. Feng Jianjun was appointed as the Company’s Executive Director
with effect from the same date, there was no change in the structure of
the Board, which currently comprises nine Directors and its composition
is set out as follows:
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Corporate Governance Reports

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Feng Jianjun

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Yue Rundong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 25 to 29 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results, as well as corporate
governance, financial, capital, and remuneration matters. During the
year under review, three Board meetings (instead of four as required by
the code provision A.1.1 of the Code) were held. Instead for efficiency
reasons, the authorization to the legal advisor representing the
Company on some regulatory matters during the year were approved
by written resolutions signed by the Board. During the year, an annual
general meeting ("“AGM”") were held. Apart from the AGM, no other
general meetings were held by the Company.
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The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is
set out as follows:

HiE BT HERE
EEEERRE BEXKEER
Number of
Board meetings Attendance of
attended/held the AGM
BITES EDs:
REBRIGE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 3/3 v/
HEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 1/3* X
REFEE Mr. Liu Chuanqi 1/3* X
ERKEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 2/3 X
TSEE L Mr. Feng Jianjun 3/3 v/
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 3/3 v/
BYFHITES: INEDs:
TRERAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/3 v/
BEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3 v/
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3 v/
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*

Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on
his behalf during their absence.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim
results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate governance,
capital, financial and remuneration. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day operations of the Group to the senior management under the
supervision of the Board.
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Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the
Directors have been provided with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover
to protect them from potential risks arising from legal actions against
them while they discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. On 1 June 2015, the Company organized for the

Directors an in-house workshop (the “Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:
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Corporate Governance/ Updates

on laws, rules and regulations

gEgnmEe
HAhRE2E
Received training
from the
Workshop/

Read materials other courses

BITES EDs:

REBRIGTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v v
HEEE Mr. Fu Kwan v/ v/
2EFEFEE Mr. Liu Chuanai v/ v/
ERKEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng v v
TEE LA Mr. Feng Jianjun v/ v/
RIS AE Mr. Zhang Jian v v
BYFHTES: INEDs:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/ v/
BEBLE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v v
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong v v
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard set out in the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.

Except Mr. Fung Jianjun, other EDs of the Company did not enter into
service contracts with the Company. Mr. Fung has entered into service
contract for a term of two tears commencing from 13 March 2015. The
INEDs signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of approximately two years commencing from 1 January 2014 and 14
August 2014.
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (being the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee cover,
among other things, the review of the Group's policy and structure
for the remuneration for all the Directors and senior management of
the Group, the approval of the remuneration for all the EDs and senior
management of the Group, including the granting of share options to
the Group’s employees and the EDs under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme, and the recommendation to the Board for the remuneration
for the INEDs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

b BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting attended/
held member

ZEEXE - Committee member:

BEBEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 1/1
TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen /1
REBREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 11

SHUETEE2014F 12831 B LT BREEHH
TEERAEBRREEEABOGTH o 1 - &
BERENRIERTEERASEREETEA
BENFHHEASBNFHABER -

SEEEAEREE05F12A31BIFEENE
BHEEEH T T

During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group’s
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
was approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management
and the Group's remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

FHEE(ARET) A

Number of

Remuneration bands (RMB) persons

2,500,001 7T % 3,000,0007T 2,500,001 to 3,000,000 1
8,500,0017C29,000,0007T 8,500,001 to 9,000,000 1

BiE EMRBIMERI6ZBETHRENEBES T
AUk EHME S RE — P H NI REM
F12K13

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee
with appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Yue
Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these
regards.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HiE BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

ZEEGKE - Committee member:
TRERAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BEBEEE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3
BEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3

ARRIMNERBM LR AEEERERABTEGH
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of

the Group also attended these meetings.



REZE2015F12A831BIEMBEERITHN S &
o ERZEEEREITATSEIE:

MAEEREE2014F12 8318 IEFERE
BmRBHEEZAIEH

AR EMEZ I - IEEE - AREIE
L GHmEEE - BRRENREREZSHEA
BHE®R P H®RE - RERBENEER
.

=

HEEINEAZ BRI L 2201412 A31 B 1EHF
BF SR EZ R IEEZRE I S X H
LR EE : &

e SR E AR - ARERAN SRR
KB - EMARRINRA BB RENETE ST
REIHE -

PEoh - IR AR AR B EIR2016F4 H26 HARA
BRRE R BISE13.490) () (IR E A MmAE
BEEHZE2015F12A31H L FEREEZEE TS
BERHAE  BEZZEgRHEREN WAL
BIZGEWBERIL TAER - AeFSRER
& o FARRIFE13496)(1) Q&R TE - FITALK
BeiR ETRR RSB 1349 G R 513 49 IRIR IR EL B
SRR DMV ESE - BIARHER S AREET
AZEREN —BERNMBEER(NZEER
ES)NERMRTFENZESE -

EEEREE

Corporate Governance Reports

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2015, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2014; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

In addition, reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 April 2016 in relation to publication of an unaudited
consolidated financial information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 pursuant to Rule 13.49(3)(i)(c) of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee discussed with management and reviewed an
unaudited consolidated financial information before publication of the
announcement. Rule 13.49(3)(i)(c) of the Listing Rules provides that
where an issuer is unable to publish its preliminary results based on
its financial statements in accordance with Rules 13.49(1) and 13.49(2)
of the Listing Rules, it must announce, so far as the information is
available, its results for the financial year based on financial results
which have yet to be agreed with the auditor of the issuer.
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On 10 January 2017, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit meeting
with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2015. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with management on
on 28 April 2017 to review the accounting standards and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control
and financial reporting including the review of the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2015 before proposing to the
Board for approval.

Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
were appointed as the members of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the independence
of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning the diversity
of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure on
the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance
report of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended

—REH - SNEMEFEERAT 31 December 2015 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

EREEER
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEKE - Committee member:
SRIERSTAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v
B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong /
ReZRiM - ZEENETR TESZEHHEMIE  During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
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composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to
the Board for consideration, made recommendation to the Board
on the appointment of a new ED to fill the vacancy of the resigning
ED, the approval of the Policy for the diversity of the Board, the
recommendation of the measurable objectives that the Board
should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as reviewed the
independence of the INEDs.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
approved the Policy for the diversity of the Board. A summary of the
Policy is set out as follows:

A. Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.
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B. Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

C. Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

D. Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2015:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Dr. Wu Tao (replaced by Mr. Feng Jianjun
after 13 March 2015) were appointed as the members of the Corporate
Governance Committee. The primary duties of the Corporate
Governance Committee are to develop and review policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board, to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, to review and monitor policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and to review
the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Reports.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BREHERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEMA -
FRELE
217 5k
2EE+

it

YERIRE - ZEEKEBNmIRIARARF
PEEARRLREHRNEE - RUAREEZE
T EFENHIILNFEEXRER  URZEEK
BEEREFTERMNALEE RS -

Mr. Zhang Jianhong
Mr. Liu Chuangi

Dr. Wu Tao

Mr. Feng Jianjun

Committee member:

N X X N

During the meeting, the members discussed and reviewed matters
relating to the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the setup of risk management committee, training and
continuous professional development of Directors, and this Corporate
Governance Report, which was recommended by the Committee’s
members for adoption by the Board.
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Risk Management Committee

The Company established a Risk Management Committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the Risk Management
Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee
are to consider, review and approve the risk management policies and
internal control systems, identify the risk of the Group, approve major
decisions affecting the Group's risk profile or exposure and consider
the effectiveness of decision making processes in crisis and emergency
situations.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. The external auditors
are responsible to form an independent opinion, based on the audit,
on the financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the members of the Company as a body and for no
other purpose.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management
procedures of the Group, including setting a management structure
and its terms of reference to ensure efficient and effective use of
the Group's resources to assist the Group in achieving its operation
objectives, safeguarding the Group's assets against any unauthorized
use or disposal and ensuring an appropriate maintenance of according
records and the availability of reliable financial information for internal
use or external release.
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The Audit Committee assisted the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls on the Group's
business and financial operations. The Audit Committee completed the
annual review of the Group's internal control evaluations in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 through a professional accounting
firm, which mainly covered certain of the Group's business and financial
operations and followed up the Group’s major control weaknesses in
respect of the previous year. In addition, as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 December 2016, subsequent to the discovery
of the misappropriation of funds of the Group , the Company appointed
one of the big four accounting firms on 12 December 2016 as its internal
control adviser to conduct an internal control review of, among others,
the treasury functions, financial and accounting information reporting
and communications and procedures on inside information disclosures of
the Group, and to provide recommendations to the Company. As at the
date of this report, the review has been completed and more details are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2017.

External auditor’'s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$3,200,000 (approximately RMB2,848,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB592,800, analyzed into (1) RMB467,800
for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the six
months period ended 30 June 2015, and (2) RMB125,000 for the review
of the internal control evaluations for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as the auditor of the Company
on 9 December 2016 as they are of the view that they have not
received sufficient information and explanations in relation to the
circumstances surrounding the misappropriation of funds of the Group
(Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2016
for more details of incident of misappropriation of funds) for them
to commence and perform their audit procedures in respect of the
financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the new auditor of the Company
with effect from 9 December 2016 to fill the casual vacancy following the
termination of engagement with Deloitte. Elite Partners shall hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.
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Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene
extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O Box 31119, Grand Pavillion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 02,
15/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The EGM
Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the EGM
to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the EGM
Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
AXA Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.



FEABRIEE R RBFASHMREHIAE
EEMNRERMAZBRRBHBE ZBMNMERE
REZHEEMTR - FIH0OT

A RBREBRAR BB REIASG LT
BRER - AAZD AR ANEEBEAN

T B BRI A R B R B A S LR
AIABRIARNFRRBFAG L EREK
FRIRBESR - AIZAZL21 AR BERBEA

BRREBMEASEEENERF

BRARBMASBEZZERF - F2HARRE
Ihwww.dongyuechem.comFTHIE AR Fr o

BRROESSETEANER

PR AIBER B EE A M EAAE B BB AR
WEXZEEES @ FABBSAWT

BB

BT
HHITE1515%
LR OSENRE
fHHE : 2180-7524

THE : carrie_dy@hotmail.com

BRIFAIRARBERMBERAG LREESEH
=

EEEREE

Corporate Governance Reports

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

AXA Centre,

151 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.
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Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 April 2017
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DONGYUE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 182, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. Because of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, however, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Loans and receivables

(@) Alleged Financial Transactions

As explained in note 8 to the Group's consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have
authorised the Independent Committee in February 2016
to investigate into the suspected misappropriation of
funds of the Group in relation to (i) wealth management
investments of RMB978.2 million; and (ii) two bank
deposits with aggregate balance of RMB500 million
((i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the “Alleged
Financial Transactions”). The Directors of the Company
have determined that these investments and deposits be
fully written off in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015, with an aggregate
loss of RMB1,478.2 million being recognised in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group
recognised interest income arising from the Alleged
Financial Transactions of approximately RMB123.3 million
and RMB71.7 million for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015.
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Due to the complexity and irregular nature of the Alleged
Financial Transactions, there had been limitations during
our audit, as described below:

We were unable to obtain necessary audit evidence of the
Alleged Financial Transactions, including but not limited to
the relevant contracts, internal records and board resolution
of approval for the wealth management investments
and bank deposits. Further, we were unable to obtain
direct confirmation or communicate with relevant parties
involved in the Alleged Financial Transactions. Accordingly,
we were unable to verify as to the nature, existence,
validity or contracted terms and conditions of the Alleged
Financial Transactions. Furthermore, we were unable to
verify the funds flow between the Group, the parties or
any suspected parties involved in the Alleged Financial
Transactions. Accordingly, we were also unable to verify the
nature and validity of the payments involved.

Given the circumstances described above, the scope of
our audit work was limited and we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to (i) the nature, existence and validity of the Alleged
Financial Transactions; (ii) whether the Alleged Financial
Transactions recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015 were appropriate
and free from material misstatements; (iii) whether
the interest income arising from the Alleged Financial
Transactions recorded by the Group of approximately
RMB123.3 million and RMB71.7 million for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2015 respectively were free from
material misstatement; (iv) whether and when the RMB978.2
million wealth management investment and RMB500
million bank deposits should be fully written off (i.e. in 2014
or 2015); and (v) whether any related party transactions
were involved in the Alleged Financial Transactions and
appropriateness of the related disclosure thereof.
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(b)

Entrusted loans

As disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entrusted loans of approximately
RMB370.0 million and RMB336.3 million recorded in
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014 and 2015 respectively (the “Entrusted
Loans”). During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015, the Group recognised interest income arising from
the Entrusted Loan of approximately RMB98.3 million and
RMB67.5 million. The Entrusted Loans of approximately RMB
306.3 million together with its interests were fully settled
and received by the Group subsequent to the financial year
end.

For the purpose of our audit, we were unable to obtain
necessary audit evidence of the Entrusted Loans, including
but not limited to the relevant contracts, internal records
and board resolution of approval for the Entrusted Loans.
Accordingly, we were unable to verify the funds flow
between the Group, the parties involved in the Entrusted
Loans, including the explanation and approval of the
payments and its related settlements.

Given the circumstances described above, the scope
of our audit work was limited and we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves regarding (i) the nature, existence and validity
of the Entrusted Loans; (i) whether the balances of the
Entrusted Loans of approximately RMB370.0 million and
RMB336.3 million as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 and
its interest income of RMB98.3 million and RMB67.5 million
arising from the Entrusted Loan for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 respectively were free from
material misstatement; (iii) we were unable to verify the
funds received by the Group were related to the settlement
of the Entrusted Loans; and (iv) we were unable to obtain
sufficient audit evidence regarding whether any potential
related party transactions were involved in the Entrusted
Loans and appropriateness of the related disclosure thereof.
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2. Bank balances and cash

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, included in the Group's
bank balances and cash were bank balances placed in the
Bank of Communications Company Limited, Qingdao branch
RBIRITR D B R A AT S X 17, the “QD BComm Bank”)
and the Qishang Bank, Huantai Branch (BEERITIE & %17, the
“Qishang Bank”) with amount of approximately RMB664.5 million
and RMB29.3 million, respectively (together as referred to the
“Banks”). As explained in note 8 to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, the Banks were involved in the Alleged

Financial Transactions.

For the purpose of our audit, we were unable to carry out
effective confirmation procedures to confirm the balances held in
the Banks as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 because the Banks
had refused to confirm the balances due to the Alleged Financial
Transactions that were placed in the court in the PRC.

Given the circumstances described above, the scope of our
audit work was limited and we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence in respect of the balances held in the
Banks because we were unable to obtain direct confirmation to
confirm the balances. There was no alternative audit procedures
that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
Banks were free from material misstatement. Any adjustments
that might have been found necessary may have an effect on
the balances of the Group's bank balances and cash as at 31
December 2015 and 2014, the consequently net loss and cash
flows of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated

financial statements.

Any adjustments that might have been found necessary for any of the
above matters may have a significant effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial position as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 and
of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, and the related
disclosures in the respective consolidated financial statements.
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Qualified opinion arising from limitation of
audit scope

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in
the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Report on matters under Section 407(2) and
407(3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
In respect alone of the matters described in the basis for qualified

opinion’s paragraph:

- We have not obtained all the information and explanations that
we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; and

- We were unable to determine whether proper books of account
had been kept.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yip Kai Yin

Certified Practising Certificate: P05131
10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

28 April 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

/22015912531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

20155 20144
B5E AR¥T T ARETTT
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue 6 7,032,486 7,599,696
SHEE R Cost of sales (5,863,519) (6,383,611)
E 5 Gross profit 1,168,967 1,216,085
HAtn g A Other income 7 343,949 290,501
DIENHERT Distribution and selling expenses (251,284) (251,209)
1TE A Administrative expenses (261,116) (289,791)
EEERE Impairment of intangible assets (40,000) =
W B E Assets written off 8 (1,478,200) -
o M B3R X Research and development expenses (69,797) (73,398)
A& RS Finance costs 9 (208,663) (201,441)
SR SN Share of results of associates (573) 283
BRELAT(E5HR), R T (Loss)/profit before tax (796,717) 691,030
s e, () Income tax credit/(expense) 10 115,780 (194,034)
RNEE(EEB),= 75 (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
Mem(Fx), WAL (expense)/income for the year 11 (680,937) 496,996
TH)& W (1) % F  (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
E2E(FEX) WAL :  (expense)/income attributable to:
. VNGIEZ=DN — Owners of the Company (690,479) 483,276
— JEFERR AR R A - Non-controlling interests 9,542 13,720
(680,937) 496,996
& (E8R),BA (Loss)/Earnings per share 14
—BER(ARE) — Basic (RMB) (0.33) 0.23
— B (ARE) — Diluted (RMB) (0.33) 0.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2015

20154 20144
Bf5E ARET T AREET T
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEE Non-current assets
E R Y Property, plant and equipment 16 4,181,257 4,456,865
BEYE WM RE Prepayments for purchase of
Z I FIE property, plant and equipment 281 28,333
FERES Prepaid lease payments 17 469,366 482,254
B AE Intangible assets 18 117,993 169,110
kRN o 7 ey Interests in associates 19 995 1,822
AL ERE Available-for-sale investments 20 1,195,283 1,195,283
REEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 21 453,288 159,473
[EES Goodwill 22 85,894 85,894
Wi — B 2 BTS2 Deposit paid for acquisition of
2EE a subsidiary 23 165,897 -
Ui B — B 2 A | BT ST A+ Deposit paid for acquisition of
2B an associate 7,250 -
6,677,504 6,579,034
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24 713,461 799,861
TEHER®RZ W Properties for sale 25 787,429 804,389
FERES Prepaid lease payments 17 13,241 13,441
B 5 R E M EWFRTE Trade and other receivables 26 1,392,153 1,006,478
REER Entrusted loans 27 336,300 370,000
B IPIRITER Pledged bank deposits 28 113,214 185,145
IRTTHE MRS Bank balances and cash 28 1,467,426 1,345,212
4,823,224 5,424,526
REEE Current liabilities
B S5 REMBENFKIE Trade and other payables 29 (a) 2,194,297 1,972,619
REEEMHEZIZS Deposits from pre-sale of properties 29 (b) 422,670 539,550
EBE Borrowings 30 1,831,754 1,390,437
MIAE G Tax liabilities 49,067 14,716
FEIEUTA Deferred income 31 28,755 10,623
4,526,543 3,927,945
REEETHE Net current assets 296,681 1,496,581
HEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 6,974,185 8,075,615
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

H2015%F12H318
At 31 December 2015

20155 20144
Bf5E ARETF T AREET T
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EARR#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 32 200,540 200,922
1 Reserves 4,600,999 5,439,885
RAEHE AEEER Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 4,801,539 5,640,807
FEERR AR R M Non-controlling interests 270,836 256,997
s Total equity 5,072,375 5,897,804
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
IEIEUT A Deferred income 31 264,051 234,422
ELEFIBEARE Deferred tax liabilities 21 50,147 57,302
ER= Borrowings 30 1,587,612 1,886,087
1,901,810 2,177,811
6,974,185 8,075,615

FNEBIRNA AV BERREETZN2017F

Z .

4F28BHE RIRBETIE - B TIALTHRRE

RER

Zhang Jianhong

EF

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 182 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 April
2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

28w
Liu Chuangi

EF

Director
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B2 2015F 1231 B IFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

KOTRAARL

Attributable to owners of the Company

BhR HERR FERRR
Be RHEE  RE KR EABR 0 RE RBEW &% 0 ER &
ARETR ARMTT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

(i) (M) (W)

Share Statutory Non-

Share Share  option  Merger  Capital  Surplus  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium  reseve  reseve  reserve  reserve - earnings Total interests Total
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOO0

(Note (a)) ~ (Note (b))~ (Note(c))

01E1B1RER Balance at 1 January 2014 W03 136038 35787 (2200 101098 699065 2716038 5266849 43979 551088
EREHREANAEE Profitand total comprehensive income fo the year - - - - - -6 46 B0 4%%
gg Transfr - - - - - (175) - - -
HEERRER A Capital contibuton rom non-contrling interests - - - - - - - i I |
BEfEARERERRE Dividends pad to non-cotroling interests - - - - - - - N /A A1)
Bk (Riks) Dividends paid (note 15) - - - - - -3 (43319) - (143319
BIREEE MR 58 Recognition of equity-sttled Shared-based payments - - % - - - R 3] - %W
EOREERn () Shares repurchased and cancelled note 32 o) - - - - -y -0
WHENR3N AL Balance at 31 December 2014 00922 1233594 382319 (322100 101,098 716317 3038767 5640807 256997 5897804
EmEHReANAES Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (690479) (690479) 9542 (680,937)
gf Transter - - - - 618 21565 (21,565) 618 15 73
HIRREES 5 Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - (182) - - (18) 4182 4,000
BitRa(H1S Dividends paid note 19 - - - - - - (151,746)  (151,746) - (151,746)
RS ”ZLAM S Recognition of equity-settled Shared-based payments - - 955 - - - - 955 - 955
%@&&iﬁ wollaRz!) Shares repurchased and cancelled [note 3) (38 (6622 - - - - - (0 - ()
WISENANBER Balance at 31 December 2015 200540 1226972 391844 (322100 101534 737882 2174977 4801539 270836 5072375
Fi%E Notes:
@@ AOHEERER2006F K EEEAE - (@)  Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
(b) F2007F11 168 @ AR Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 1B BT (b) On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
E{E0.135 7T, T iBA%275,000,0008% * ki 0 Ei@ previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased
Hxiﬁiﬁ’s:a?EHﬂZﬁﬁﬁxfmﬁ KRBT — 8l [ ordinary shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share
H - #1%584,000,000 OOOHQlHQE@O BT #ER capital as of that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was
BR - 35 5E T AR 2K 3 % 400,000,000 T © mowﬁmj increased to HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary
158 - [H G 5 347275,000 000K iR E fE0.1 /5 7T shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were
Zfﬁ%@ﬁﬁ ® %@%%ﬁtiﬂaﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂxﬁﬁz REE then issued to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of
Rt AB AR the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was
credited directly to the capital reserve.
AT B A 7 FEE A% AR B Ui B 5B AN wS e 2R A ER FE 1 A The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
BRERZRXS  BILELZBBETE SEEER subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and
BREEHE,/ S the corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against
capital reserve.
(0 HREPEARENRA(HE])ATERIBBATAS () Inaccordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and
ZRRMME| - ADF R RME A R ESEERRESRE the relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are
S AEREBEE 2R E B0 EESRBBRAZETE required to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
BEIRALEE o determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve.
ETERBREEAIRERER 3D BEASEDH Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance
ERFMER0%.2 w58 - BIEELE —FH0 o BE reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation
FEARDE  SATERBHFEEN] BEEMBEEE 12 is not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus
INAEE N RGBSl BB AT N o reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and

business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHE2015F 1231 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

20155 20144
AR¥T T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRE A (EE), 55 (Loss)/profit before tax (796,717) 691,030
FEIFH Adjustments for:
BhE KA Finance costs 208,663 201,441
FEHA Interest income (144,162) (233,787)
EIEU A B3R Realisation of deferred income (24,826) (23,266)
R E ZREWHIERE Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables (900) (139)
e N i Depreciation and amortisation 691,538 688,950
BEEMNES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,088 12,952
IRRELEE 7 AR SRS Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 9,525 36,532
WRFEE Write-down of inventories 9,458 15,253
i /NI Share of results of associates 573 (283)
AHEERERBKA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (117,037) (2,535)
& —fHEE AR 2 WS Gain on disposal of an associate = (36)
HEME « B RHREBE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 8,252 26,733
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets 40,000 -
M - R RRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 740 -
MBI - BB KRR Written off of property, plant and equipment 5,047 =
MEEEE Assets written off 1,478,200 =
EEESHHA LKL ERE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 1,381,442 1,412,845
;‘u’j m () Decrease/(increase) in inventories 76,942 (115,060)
SREMEWERIEGEI), S5  Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables (937,699) 113,900
{’Eﬂj’%ﬁﬁZEﬁi’Wj% Decrease/(increase) in properties under
(K ) development for sale 16,960 (161,435)
f’f%&ﬁi\mféﬁ K IBIE AN Increase in trade and other payables 221,678 354,498
RATEEME RS R ), I  (Decrease)/increase in deposits from
pre-sale of properties (116,880) 100,766
EFEY AL AN Increase in deferred income 72,587 9,137
KEASIRE Cash generated from operations 715,030 1,714,651
BEAETSH MBI Income taxes and withholding tax paid (150,839) (181,938)
RETHRESRESTFH NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 564,191 1,532,713
REZD INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ME=HIRELEER Entrusted loans to third parties (1,903,000) (2,450,300)
BBt ERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments = (1,000,000)
BEYE MW NERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (394,455) (635,218)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

20155 20144
ARET ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EMEEIRRITFER Placement of pledged bank deposits - (269,150)
XA LS Payment for prepaid land lease - (4,357)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets - (1,254)
HWE=H 2 BIHEE Wealth management investments to third parties (828,200) (2,684,100)
FE-HEEZTER Repayment of entrusted loans from third parties 1,936,700 2,505,300
BELUCHLE Interest received 144,162 233,787
R B ISR T T 5 508 Proceeds from release of pledged bank deposits 71,931 190,325
HE—REE QRIS EIE Proceeds from disposal of an associate - 15,089
B~ R FEE AR AR SR AR R Repayment from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - 10,000
HEME  HWERRESEIE  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 3,655 3,142
FE=HEEEFRE Repayment of wealth management
investments from third parties 805,000 1,872,100
A ERERBUA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 117,037 2,535
B E AR E Dividends received from associates 254 446
WEE—RMB AR 2EE Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary (165,897) -
W EEE S N BT 2 & Deposit paid for acquisition of associate (7,250) -
RETBFMARES TR NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (220,063) (2,211,655)
AEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
B EASRIE Proceeds from borrowings 2,090,585 2,846,240
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,947,743) (1,722,280)
27 B Interest paid (210,188) (196,550)
BERIRE Dividends paid (151,746) (143,315)
BB K s SERR 12 Shares repurchased and cancelled (7,004) (2,535)
B A FEFE % A SR e PR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = (2,102)
R R ER T E Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 4,182 1,400
WMEEE (FTA), Fri338£F%  NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (221,914) 780,858
BeRZERREEAEMFHE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 122,214 101,916
FHzRERERRELER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,345,212 1,243,296
FRZEERERRELER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR
Bl : represented by:
RITHEBRRIRS Bank balances and cash 1,467,426 1,345,212
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A Z2015F12H31 A IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution and sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone
and dichloromethane, polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali
and others. In addition, the Group is also engaged in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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2. Application of new and revised accounting

standards

Amendments to IFRSs and a new interpretation
that are mandatorily effective for the current year
ended 31 December 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time in the
current year the following amendments and a new interpretation
to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB").

Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and the interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial statements
is on the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations and

amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

BN B R E B S 05 SRIA IFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

Bl BTSSR = RIS 1557 ERAHKE' IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
R B 75 9 £ 2R 81 6% g IFRS 16 Leases’

ERGRRERERES INES: 5 R E! IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transaction and

%E%Zhﬁ
BRI mEERIE 115
CHEY)

KBEoEXBERNET
BRIET A

Amendments to IFRS 11

Advance Consideration’
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations*

R e EAE 1 RBITA) REE! Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative*

BB en kEE  HEX e R Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
SEER B85 (B A) HER S and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation*
ERerrEAZ R kAR RE : £EEED Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants*
SEEAIZEAR(BTA) and IAS 41

Bl @R E2758 (B3 AK)
BB #5REEE (B 3T A)

BUBTBERR R
BB AR E ER012F R

Amendments to |AS 27

Amendments to IFRSs

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements*
Annual Improvements to IFRSs

20145F 5 7 F R 2012-2014 Cycle*
BB BTSSR 2 RIS 1057 REFEABE DAL Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
REIB @ &R 85 AB DRI ZMEMBE and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
CHEY) HEFIRAS Joint Venture’

BB R o B 1087
BB RS £ R 5105
R EIR & R85
CHEy

RAEE : ERGAAK
WBIsMRE:

Amendments to IFRS 10

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception*

B et RRE7R(BIIA) RE:EP Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative?
B e ER|E 105 (85 A) BnAREEEBRELELE Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
WHBE LR unrealised Losses?
B R B S R 25 22 B 057 AEREHBIARG 7% Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
({B3TA) HBEMEHR S’ Share-based Payment Transactions'

BRI RS ER R4k
(BATA)

£ PR B TR 5 VE B BB 455,
{REa A #)— Bt FE F BIER
BT R B S5 05

Amendments to IFRS 4

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

SRIA
BRBBREEE S  ERUEREERNEISH Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
({EZTA) BEPALBEER Contracts with Customers'
BIR @RI B405 (1B F) BRARENE Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’
BB IR R (BETR)  2014EF016E R 7 B Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS
BITSREEA  FE e Standards 2014-2016 Cycle®

20181 A1 B2 &R 2 F/E HARAE R
7201741 A1 B sk 2 &R 2 & 2R A
20191 A1 B2 &R 2 /2 B AR
K20165F1 B1 Bk 2 & FRts 2 FE R AR
R FHEE B 8k 2 %58 2 F 2 HAR A3
20171 1B 52018F1 B1B Rk 2 &R 2
FEEHMER(INEE)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1
January 2018, as appropriate

o v & w N =
o v & w N =
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new and
revised IFRSs, other than those set out below, will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended
in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and
in 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a fair value through
other comprehensive income (“‘FVTOCI") measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.
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2. Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented
in profit or loss.
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2. Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the
future may have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
potential early recognition of credit losses based on the expected
loss model in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs. Presently, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 “Revenue’,
IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

The Directors are in the process of reviewing the effect of the

application of IFRS 15 on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2015 83



Fade)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR AR B EE

B 201512431 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

84

B A5 8T R AS A5 AT 2 Bt o
()

E MM E R A R HT T R AR MERT %
B~ RERETAER)

B U B REENE165REE

B B 5 ¥R = 2RI 165k (B A3 H HA R ER
REER G ERNFE 7R -HE) I AE—%
HASTRIERE - W 2REAAHEBER
REANHEEREERAE  FRIFABE
EEERE REME  BEREMEHREER
F165R B AMAERKKEEAREEE
BENEREEEMMREXNEERRE
BHHEERE - Bt AHAFTERRERA

BEEERS O RASH O RFEHRS - X
RREREREY - Rl - EREEENE
ERENREEELETVIHE - FHERR
TRIBEEEENK - NEREAEAERSE
EEITEERENERBEL T THEEE
AR IS A B EZHBANRK o th &5 RIE
TREBERBERGENF17RED R
REBONEENABASTHREFERE
==

SREEASFRENS @ BRMEHREER
FIREL LIEET BB et ERF 1755
RHEEASRIENER - Fit - HHA%
BREHER D AEEENIRMERLD X
HMEHERATEN S ERIE -

EER M RA B RS ERE 1658
HERESUBRRAIEERHFE - ZRA
SENEBUEEER  BHAKENGES M
BRESZZE - EFHARTHAERAE
BRI REEAF 1SRN EETE - HURAE
HAEELEEBERMBARR AT BERZHF
ZhAE1l -

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

2. Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS 17
Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them
in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently.

The Directors is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated
financial statements resulting from the application of IFRS 16.
Given the nature of the Group's operations, it is expected to have
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Directors has not completed its assessment of the full impact
of adopting IFRS 16 and therefore the possible impacts on the
Group's operating results and financial position have not been
quantified.
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3. Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements
set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
IFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under
the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non- controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non- controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the carrying amounts of the
non- controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the "measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
IAS 39, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash- generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Specifically, revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective properties
have been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statements of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.



3. TESFEHE(E)

BERAE

EERTERREKE  ZEREERER
BE MRFEEFRE BERRTAHMA
TEREREHIHE - FEREEMAEZSE
BEMNKA BEBEEABEAIHABERTE
Rz ERLE - HARREBEREEN
EEEFERRERRORERA - RE3
REMEBEERAF R

A EAtb fE BRI E A B B P i

=7
s ©

B Bl
EAERIIRE
et - ARG
e -

ARER B2 8 T U B Y P 7
SREMBA - T2 MR

BT BN 538 R &% - RAKBEH R
Bt ER AR AER AR WEEA
RIBmPHER - BRBME  UERAEERE
B ZERRBIRBDEERST RGN
I BY IR & B 5 R 3k P iR IR AE I
A UERBEENRERFHALRERR
BEAEEBEFR/ET -

EREBEENRAHEENBESIE TN
SEARM B FE A - BEBRHERKA
B E MR ER AT B - To IS ELAK A R W ER B0 A ]
ARER PR ©

REMBHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally- generated intangible asset is reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights (Continued)
sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises both the prepaid lease payments for land and
development costs for the properties. Development costs
of properties comprise construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised according to the Group's accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period. Cost of
each unit in each phase of development is determined using the
weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately

expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change of intention to hold the property
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale investments. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its costs
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days or 180 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the effect of the
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating-units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade receivables in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers and
the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
provision accordingly. The aggregate carrying value of trade
receivables at 31 December 2015, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB2,918,000 (2014: RMB3,818,000), is RMB1,293,613,000
(2014: RMB827,733,000).

Collectability of entrusted loans

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on entrusted
loans, the Group estimates the future cash flows of entrusted loans
for impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the entrusted loans’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise in future financial periods. The
aggregate carrying value of entrusted loans at 31 December 2015
is RMB336,300,000 (2014: RMB370,000,000).
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2015 is RMB4,181,257,000
(2014: RMB4,456,865,000). Further details are disclosed in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s
management considers it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses or tax credit can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2015
is RMB453,288,000 (2014: RMB159,473,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2015 for a period
of two years till October 2017. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority upon
the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2017 at insignificant
cost. In addition, the directors of the Company assess the
impairment of the exploration rights by estimating the recoverable
amount of the assets. The carrying amount of exploration rights
at 31 December 2015 is 40,000,000 (2014: RMB80,000,000) and
impairment of RMB40,000,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). Further details are disclosed
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB85,894,000 (2014: RMB85,894,000) and no impairment loss
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 30, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

20155 20144
AR¥T T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREE Financial assets
EX R EWFIAE(EIE  Loans and receivables (including
ERARITER pledged bank deposits, bank
RITERKEIRE) balances and cash) 2,948,792 3,373,487
At HERE Available-for-sale investments 1,195,283 1,195,283
4,144,075 4,568,770
tRBeE Financial liabilities
XTI Amortised cost 4,786,171 4,531,880
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk
The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar “USS") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

BE aE
Assets Liabilities
20154 20144F 20154 20144
ARETRE ARETT AR¥TRT AR®TT
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT uss 121,480 140,209 153,288 252,154

R2015F12A8318 * B AR®E X
ELAEBEBEI0% mAAE
A ERERERTE  FERH
AIEE HRE®EMNEEH T
f& A R #3,180,0007C (20144 :
B/ £ F A R #8393,0007T )
FERABBREUEITLTENRIT
BHRRE - BHREMEKRK
B RAETFERNEERE KK
#/ESIEFTE o

EEERA FHANARTEE
RERFARER - HEEE DT
BEREIBIMNER

At 31 December 2015, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax/post-tax profit for the
year would have been RMB3,180,000 higher/lower
(2014: RMB8,393,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US$
denominated bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables and US$ denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 30 for
details of these borrowings). At 31 December 2015,
31% (2014: 40%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 30 for details of
these borrowings).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate, Hang Seng
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2014: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2014: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss before
tax/post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase/decrease by RMB1,578,000 (2014:
RMB1,465,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2014: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant,
the Group's loss before tax/post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would decrease/increase by
RMBS5,935,000 (2014: RMB3,662,000), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, entrusted loans and trade and other
receivables (except for prepayments), represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The objective of the Group's measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to recoverability
problem. Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are held in major financial institutions in the PRC, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’'s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.
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objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

REBE SRR

EEERPECARE  AEEEEY
HEEEERAERNENAEEZE
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EXRBRITEEERRBDESHNEER
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Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB2,670,800,000 (2014:
RMB3,276,524,000). Details of which are set out in note 30.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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5. EXEREVMBEKREEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) BEEREEEERBEEK (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
FEESREME(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REE 2 R FRE 2 () Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
4 ABBREE  M015E128

Rk 1f8ER 12388 WARE 1E 258 RELAE 31BNEREE
% ARETT ARETR ARETn AR%Tr AR%Tn  ARETR

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at
Average Less than 13 3 months Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2015

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R015%E12831H 31 December 2015
B REMERNFE Trade and other payables - 480,467 810,125 560,171 19741 1,870,504 1,870,504
fHE Borrowings
) - fixed rates 584 4,539 81,689 501,701 518,153 1106082 1,045,100
-8 - variable rates 6.21 30,250 263752 1,087,696 1,140,040 2521738 2,374,266
515256 1155566 2,149,568 167793 5498324  5289,870
T AEBERE  R014E1A
HIf% 1AM 1A ERRIE 15556 RELE 3IBMEEE
% ARETT ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
Average Less than 13 3 months lyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2014
% RMBO0D RMBO0D RMBO0D RMB000 RMB00O RMB00O
014124318 31 December 2014
B REMERFE Trade and other payables - 1,255,355 2073 108,798 = 1594885 1,594885
A& Borrowings
-%8 - fixed rates 6,19 440055 490679 334382 551489 1420605 1323500
-8 - variable rates 648 8,564 4881 560,806 141,155 2059346 191,604

1307974 7710232 1,003,986 1,992,644 5074836 4829989
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
of products and property development. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of products
and property development. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:
Refrigerants;
Polymers;
Organic silicone;
Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

Property development — development of residential
properties at Shandong Province, the PRC.

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-products
of refrigerants segment, polymers segment, organic silicone
segment and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali
segment.
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6. WEkoEER(EF) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
DB R FEE Segment revenues and results

REFZREBRMEED ISR EEND
MR o

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment.

20154 2015

L 2878
BRH  BATHH ElE  PVCRER  UEER fE  HAfER B it
AESTR ARETn ARMTR  ARMTn ARMTR ARETn  ARETn ARETR  ARETx

Dichloromethane Reportable

Organic PVCand Property  segments’ Other

Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquid alkali ~ development total  operations Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
bl Extemal sls 1867578 1953624 1443001 I9N8 61933 6860384 172102 - T,032486
DUEMHE  Intersegment sales 993,860 - 333 3718 - 997,911 517,857 (1,515,768) -
U - DEIE Total revenue - segment revenue 2,861,438 1,952,624 1,443,354 981,646 619,233 7,858,295 689,959  (1,515,768) 7,032,486
N SEGMENT RESULTS 372,158 181,247 (28,873) 54,046 200,133 778111 18,138 - 796,849
APRLERE  Unallocated corporate expenses (23178)
AAREMMA  Unallocated other income 117,044
WHEE Assets written off (1,478,200)
BERA Finance costs (208,663)
PGB A TEIE Share of results of associates (573)
BHAEE Loss before tax (796,717)
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

20145 2014

—&RiL E2i)
RH RATIE BlE NCREE  MERR g8 AfER b3Fd &
ARETT  ARETn  ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn ARETm ARETn

Dichloromethane Reportable

Organic PVCand Property segments’ Other

Refrigerants Polymers Slicone liquidalkali ~ development fotal operations ~ Eliminations Total
RMB1000 RMBO000 RMB1000 RMBO000 RMB000 RMBO000 RMB000 RMBO000 RMB000
Hie Extemalsales 2062611 21520% 1509324 1,19053% 55087 14960 160074 - 7599696
DHBOHE  Interseqment s 1166126 - 4790 4545 AT 36 (168782 -
BlE-280E Tou Tevenue - segment revenue 3208741 2152054 1514114 1,195,081 525,087 8,615,083 672440 (1,68782) 1599,69%
AxE SEGMENT RESLLLTS %7230 3213 (31809 62044 145955 908537 2784 - 993)1
APEAZES  Unallocated corporate expenses (39669)
FAREMMA  Unallocated other income 155
HEA Finance costs (201447)
FIEREATEE  Share of resuls of associates »
iyl Profit efore tax 691030

EHMREE D BN G BER RN E3RA
AEESTBRMER - DREERELED
FEARDEEMMBA - FRITHEA - EFF
B PrinEE ARIRERBEKAT - &5
EREVERAR o WIIAAREERRAZRER A
FERDEEMFRMENIER - ANEER
BEMNDBENLIFREEERRAZRIE
BAEERMHERANESE - HAEE5]
AEER -

S HR S E THRIAT IR IR 5 -

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment results represent the results of each
segment without allocation of unallocated other income, central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of result of associates
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. No segment information on assets
and liabilities is presented as such information is not reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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6. MKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREREE Entity-wide disclosures

EREERDBEZHRB IR RKBIRES Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by

K= E R products from external customers
20154 20144
AR®TR ARETTT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
—HR—EFIE(HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 590,967 1,064,832
P4 2 k2 (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 153,279 92,435
A& LKT(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 34,701 71,092
R439A R439A 417 5
R410a R410a 271,373 264,628
R413A R413A 35,972 37,913
R142b R142b 43,107 32,203
R152a R152a 113,654 95,350
R22 R22 287,233 -
R32 R32 165,127 106,576
=) Others 171,748 297,587
1,867,578 2,062,621
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W RkoEER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREXREKE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
ERERERDEZED FHE D EBRE IR Information about revenue from polymers segment by
EEHNKEER products from external customers
20155 20144
ARET T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
B PUE 2 1% (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,045,205 1,147,855
7N I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 253,861 280,537
NEIRT I Perfluorocyclobutane 49,922 46,568
2 BE LR (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 22,558 243,421
RIR& L% (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 259,464 239,341
FUIZR B (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 87,728 80,357
R % 1% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 18,055 21,253
HAh, Others 215,831 92,722
1,952,624 2,152,054
FRRERSBEZERESBREMRER Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by
k&R products from external customers
20155 20145
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
DMC(ZREES MBS IREE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 348,683 381,883
107fE18 B 107 Silicone Rubber 426,173 475,402
H R Raw Vulcanizate 164,162 155,511
D3I(NFRER=FEEL) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) = 7,191
SRR Gross Rubber 48,285 58,742
SR KA Gaseous Silica 107,679 74,668
DMCIKEZ ) DMC Hydrolysate 79,874 70,422
=RESELR Trimethylchlorosilane 42,613 29,127
RES SR Methyldichlorosilane 1,781 6,979
g Ganister sand - 24,696
I AEREDMC DMC Lineament 96,567 67,900
D4\ ERMWESA ) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 42,578 33,332
EAfth Others 84,626 123,471
1,443,021 1,509,324
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6. Wk oEER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREREE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

EREERDEZ_SHF R PVCR Eug R Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

B IMNRE B H e B R liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20154 20144
ARET T ARETTT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 441,405 600,153
—8RkR Dichloromethane 180,278 240,368
i Liquidalkali 356,245 350,015
977,928 1,190,536

FRRERIBzEMKE I BRENMPRE
FHWzEER

Information about revenue from other operations segment by
products from external customers

20154 20144

AR¥T R ARETTT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AHF(EKFELE) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 736 12,091
FaEZ Ammonium Bifluoride 52,792 52,033
TR Hydrofluoric Acid 28,202 25474
IRE Bromine 52,120 41,045
Efh Others 38,252 29,431
172,102 160,074
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Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Information about major customers

There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
over 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
location of customers is detailed below:

20155 20144
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
H PRC 5,576,179 5,937,784
TN (BRARBISN) Asia (except PRC)
—B=R ~ Japan 277,798 358,929
— % — South korea 251,631 260,211
—EBE - India 28,097 39,292
— AN - Singapore 19,378 31,525
— — Thailand 45,522 44,735
— PR REE S B R B — United Arab Emirates 54,516 82,652
—EBEHTE — Pakistan 18,523 21,018
— B R - Malaysia 27,526 22,822
—JEEE — Philippines 8,013 11,736
— il — Viet Nam 17,512 14,593
—tHH — Turkey 36,381 18,909
— HAnER — Other countries 62,548 120,004
NEE Subtotal 847,445 1,026,426
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6. Wk o EER (M)
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
WwEER(E) Geographical information (Continued)
20155 20144
ARETT ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
=M America
—£H — United States of America 285,018 246,732
o il — Brazil 70,331 85,090
—H B — Other countries 19,101 7,983
INEF Subtotal 374,450 339,805
M Europe
— B KA — ltaly 99,465 145,542
— - England 3,591 3,370
— B & — Russia 25,732 35,355
— 2 — Germany 31,712 25,942
—AE — France 4,493 10,487
—HER — Other countries 8,621 16,030
/INEt Subtotal 173,614 236,726
JEMN Africa
—mIE - South Africa 20,354 15,953
- K — Egypt 6,408 4,557
—E B ¥R — Nigeria 16,263 15,509
—HER — Other countries 11,030 -
NEF Subtotal 54,055 36,019
HMBAR &= Other countries/regions 6,743 22,936
7,032,486 7,599,696

PREASE 2 ERBEEDUNFHE -

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
HibpEER Other segment information
-8 2RREELY
HRE BATHH AHE PVCRER EEES L A a3t
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  AREfR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquidalkali  development  segment total operations Total
RVB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000
0158 015
VERE ) Depreciaton of property,

RAE plantand equipment mss1 183797 134641 105,566 - 646,555 33,866 680421
EYEERS Amortisation of ntangible assets n 10,318 126 20 - 11,086 3 7
(BE)/#285 (Revisal) recognition o mpaiment

EUZERE on trade receivables (299) (668) 159 (109) - (917) 17 (900)
BEZARYL Research and development costs

FRRFERA fecoqised as an expense 2475 63,986 2,209 583 - 69,253 544 69,797
T Write-down of inventories 5107 842 387 2979 - 9315 183 9,458
HENE  BARAE Loss on disposelsof propery,

5 plant and equipment 4,865 191 345 870 - 8,051 201 8,252
AOBMEL Release of prepaid lezse

Payments 2817 4,339 3,147 1,116 - 11,419 1,669 13,088
BYEERR Impaiment of ntangible assets - - - - - - 40,000 40,000
% BERRE Impaiment of propert,

HE plant and equipment - - - - - - 740 740
0145 014
VER ) Depreciaton of property

e Plant and equipment 197362 25940 144434 11398 % 661247 15318 677565
EEERY Amortisation of ntangible assets ki 10705 126 0 - 11369 16 11385
(BE)E285 (Reisa) recogniton of mpaiment (166 8 (5 - - (1%9) - (139

ElsuasfE on trade recefiables
BEZARYL Research and development cos's 45)5 65414 1926 1017 - 788 516 733%

RERRZA fecognised & an expense
T Write-down of inventories 9746 199 2568 - - 15093 3 1529
HENE  BERRE Loss gain) on cisposes of propery, 18728 1430 (14 2090 - 213 259 %73

FElz) plantand equipment
AOBREL Release of prepaid lezse

Payments 29% 5102 314 1,069 19 1441 5N 1295
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7. Hilr A

7. Other income

20154 20144
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
IEgaR i Government grants
—HERAYEE B (HizFa) — Related to expense items (Note a) 23,678 10,521
— & ER B (K3 — Related to assets (note 31) 24,826 23,266
SRITEFRF BULA Bank deposits interest income 4,396 10,484
BEE NS A Interest income on wealth management
contract 71,709 123,281
ZREE R BHWA Interest income on entrusted loan 67,466 98,335
RERAMHHERE 2 REWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 117,037 2,535
HE—KEE AR 2 W Gain on disposal of an associate = 36
Hh Others 34,837 22,043
343,949 290,501
MiEE - Notes:
@ BUTHEEZRAEMREDRS  EELEHME (@ The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research

NHERBFX -

are incurred.
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activities which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
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8. Assets written off

As explained in the Company’'s announcement dated 30
September 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company have
authorised the Independent Committee in February 2016 to
investigate into the suspect misappropriation of funds of the
Group in relation to (i) wealth management investments of
RMB978.2 million (being the net balance of approximately
RMB1,249.2 million and RMB271 million due from and due to the
investee companies for the wealth management investments
as at 31 December 2015 respectively) and (ii) 2 bank deposits
of RMB500 million ((i) and (ii) are collectively referred to as the
“Alleged Financial Transactions”). As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2016, PricewaterhouseCoopers
Management Consulting (Shanghai) Limited (the “Independent
Forensic Expert”) was engaged by the Independent Committee
to perform a review on the Alleged Financial Transactions (the
“Review”) which has been completed. The Independent Forensic
Expert has issued a forensic review report to the Independent
Committee in September 2016. A summary of the findings of the
Review was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30
September 2016.

With regards to the net balances of the wealth management
investments of RMB978.2 million, according to the Review, a
balance totalling RMB978.2 million as of 31 December 2015 which
were recorded under the line item “other receivables” as at 31
December 2014 was due from a group of 9 companies (collectively
referred to as the "“MC Companies”) to 2 subsidiaries of the Group
(the "2 Subsidiaries”), namely Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.,
Limited and Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Limited, through a
local bank in Zibo City, Qishang Bank, Huantai branch, in the PRC.
The entire balance of RMB978.2 million remained outstanding
as at 31 December 2015 and up to the date of authorisation for
issue of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Group recognised interest of
RMB71.7 million arising from the wealth management investments
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB123.3 million).
There were approximately RMB2,684.1 million and RMB828.2
million of wealth management contracts being invested by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015
respectively.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2015 135



mEMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 201512431 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

8. MEEEE(H)
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RAREEDITHMERITFERARES00
A& NAFR20155F11 BAZBRITER
BEE  MEGHBECAT - RERTT
1 ZEFERERRFE—RRIT - 1ERZ
RITAMRBHRARELEARSBEERD
RFES  MEMREARRARIEBELN - I
FEBRZBITARESOAETLHNEEE
Fo A AEEEZRITERODARE
500B BILRBRWAIRITIZMK -
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2015F 12 A31 8 L FEE B EHIEE (20144
7)) ©

ARAEFRR  LMERNESRXHRER

RBAEEETRIEB P HE A ML
MAESMERK

BE KA

8. Assets written off (Continued)

With regards to the 2 bank deposits of RMB500 million placed by
the 2 Subsidiaries in a bank in Bank of Communications Company
Limited, Qingdao branch, the PRC, the Company was informed in
November 2015, upon enquiries with the bank, that the balance
of the 2 deposits had become zero. According to the Review, the
deposits were placed with a bank in the PRC as security deposits
lending the same amount of loans to 2 of the MC Companies
which subsequently defaulted on repayment of the entire RMB500
million loans due to the bank and as a result, the RMB500 million
security deposits placed by the Group with the bank were
forfeited by the bank.

The aggregated amount of RMB1,478.2 million were fully written
off during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

The above-mentioned Alleged Financial Transactions are
considered by the Directors of the Company as suspected
unauthorised use or potential misappropriation of funds made by
certain former employees of the Group.

9. Finance costs

20155 201445
ARET T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE Interest on:
ARAFAREEE ZRITER Bank loans wholly repayable
within five years 203,655 202,025
ARAFABEEMEE Other borrowings repayable
within five years 6,533 4,286
EERABEE Total borrowings costs 210,188 206,311
T B RERERFTEREE  Less: Amounts capitalised for property,
plant and equipment (1,525) (4,870)
208,663 201,441

REEBERAE —2-1FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2015F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

9. Finance costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted
average capitalisation rate of 6.22% (2014: 6.49%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.

10. Income tax credit/(expense)

20155 20144
ARBT T ARETFT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRI ([ ERTRHL) PRC enterprise income tax ("EIT")

—EREE — Current year 167,452 149,647
—BEAFERETR) BERE — (Under)/over provision in prior years (9,592) 5,609
SIS E R ([ I ER |) Land appreciation tax (“LAT") 27,330 8,587
185,190 163,843

EEREER),/ S (FEE21) Deferred tax (credit)/charge (note 21)

— BB A RIAI 2k EF 2 BT~ Withholding tax for distributable
profits of PRC subsidiaries 18,145 15,371
—Hft ~ Others (319,115) 14,820
(300,970) 30,191
Fri5#i (o), B 4258 Total income tax (credit)/expense (115,780) 194,034
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10. FigHE SR (BX) ()

AFEREE R, (FX) 856 BEREMw
2ERATRRHBRB AR AL BRI T

10. Income tax credit/(expense)(Continued)

The tax credit/(expense) for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

20154 20144
ARYET T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
BrELAT (B, F (Loss)/Profit before tax (796,717) 691,030
PAQ5%) 1T EFif Bt E Ry Fi1a Tax charge at enterprise income tax
= it (Htsta) rate of (25%) (Note a) 199,179 (172,757)
REEHREAENERH Income tax on concessionary rate 18,015 11,670
DA R A B R TE & 22 Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose 89,634 1,154
Fr{RBt & N R BN T IE & Tax effect of share of result of associates (143) 71
B2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose (81,059) (11,526)
RERMBEEENHRIESZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized (82,505) (16,728)
MASRIARERTIBEBEAORIBEE  Tax effect of utilization of tax losses
previously not recognized 2,713 12,123
BEFEEBRETE (REEE) Under/(over) provision in respect
of prior years 9,592 (5,609)
AR B B A Bl Rl R B FIAELEFRIIE  Deferred tax on distribution earnings
(Kt7ED) of PRC subsidiaries (Note b) (18,145) (15,371)
SERTARIER O HIRE IS ZE5 MR B2 Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognized (1,785) 10,174
T 3B E R (i Ec) LAT (Note c) (27,330) (8,587)
T Hh 3% (B A Tl 1B B 2 Tax effect of LAT 6,833 2,147
Efth Others 781 (795)
AEERHERSR, (FAX) Tax credit/(expense) for the year 115,780 (194,034)
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10.Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant
income tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue
Chemicals"), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue Polymers”),
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicon”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd
(“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The
income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou") is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a high and
new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB18,145,000 (2014: RMB15,371,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.
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N.EREBR) EFREE
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(BI%), WA #8%

FAER) af ke (X)), RALLRE

B GEA) TIISE :

11.(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive

(expense)/income for the year

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year

has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items:

20154 20144
ARET T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EHEERA Short-term employee benefits 405,205 407,878
BB IEAL (P ) Discretionary bonus (Note) 1,000 4,970
RIRAE R Post-employment benefits 98,653 79,169
IRiEsEE 2 LARRD TSR SZ Equity-settled share-based payment
expense 9,525 36,532
Hih 8 T Other staff welfare 25,044 28,885
@8 TR AR Total staff costs 539,427 557,434
ERRARY 2 FEKA Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 5,172,491 5,772,058
M - IR RBEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 680,421 677,565
EREEEEGTABEEAAR) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 11,117 11,385
Z SR BN & Auditor's remuneration 2,603 3,215
b H a5 Net foreign exchange gains (11,188) (2,745)
01 8 5 EWGRIBRE Reversal of impairment
on trade receivables (900) (139)
B & HRE Impairment of wealth management
contract 1,478,200 =
BHER AR 25k R FEERA Research and development costs
recognized as an expense 69,797 73,398
WoRFEE (G ASHERA) Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales) 9,458 15,253
B EENES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,088 12,952
HEME - R RREEE Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 8,252 26,733
ERAERE Impairment of intangible assets 40,000 -
W% - HEERERERE Impairment of property,
plant and equipment 740 -

st A EETHRABFEEEME -

EREMBIBIEL A AR 102430007

(20144 © AFR#11,073,0007T) ©

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

Notes: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

RMB11,073,000).

The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB10,243,000 (2014:
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NR.EERFTETHRAEHH 12.Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
M10% (20144 : 10B)EERFETHAER The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2014: 10)
HFABEERFHENT directors and the chief executive were as follows:
2015E
2015
RiEEE 2
BEEA Bk HRGARA
[k #ie (Hrit) HE e Bx  HER @zt
ARETR ARMTR ARBTRT ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR%T:R
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note) contributions expense benefits Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HITES Executive Directors
RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 5,925 - 3,439 - 15,508
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
AEart Mr. Liu Chuangi 144 6,000 475 - 3,490 - 10,109
ERREE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2,400 3,843 6 1,203 2 7,688
RELE(R0155 Mr. Wu Tao (resigned on

3A16BEHE) 16 March 2015) - - = - - - -
BRELA(R0155 M. Feng Jianjun (appointed on

3A16HEZE) 16 March 2015) 115 - = = - - 115
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - = - 52 - 196
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive

Directors

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 265 - - - - - 265
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 158 - - - - - 158
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 158 - - - - - 158

1,416 14,400 10,243 6 8,274 2 34,341
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NR.EERFETHRAEHHGE)

12.Directors’

emoluments (Continued)

and chief executive’s

2014
2014
RiEEE
flpizan BR ROYH
itk i (Fitst) sHEIHER X HfbsEd @t
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARBTRT ARETE
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
HTES Executive Directors
RELLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 4,906 - 3439 - 14489
BEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
fEarsE Mr. Liu Chuang 144 6,000 4901 = 3490 = 14535
ERPEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 1,266 5 1,293 2 5110
RELE Mr. Wu Tao 144 - - - - - 144
REfA Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 5 i 1%
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 250 - - - - - 250
ERfREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 158 - - . _ i 158
BEELA (0145 Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed
8RI4BEZAE) on 14 August 2014) 60 - - - - - 60
BEEE (0145 Mr. Liu Vi (resigned on
8R14BEHE) 14 August 2014) - = = = - - -
1332 14,400 11,073 5 8274 2 35,086

SRIERSTETRARAITHAAEL - £ XFTH
BHH NS ERTRAESRERRE O

B o

FR - AEBUERASEXAATS 5
SN AREBE N AE B S EA AR
SEMNRSEERAE - IEXETHRASR
S EE REE £20155 &2014512 831
B IER{EF E R E RS -

T - BIBTEALDIRBEEMEAREMETE °

142
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AL

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2015 and

2014.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance

of the directors.
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13.Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2014: three) were directors of the Company whose

Bifsk1omh o HEAMG (20145 : MG )RS H emoluments are included in note 12 above. The emoluments of
ALTHE BT the remaining two (2014: two) individuals were as follows:
20154 20144
ARET T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 9,398 5,902
RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 11 5
R 45 E 2 LARR (D S TR 2 Equity-settled share-based payment
expense 1,862 1,552
11,271 7,459
BEFHMNTATAR : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
20154 20144
EEEE EE%E
2015 2014

No. of employees No. of employees

2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001% 7T 4,000,000 7T
5,000,001 7T 26,000,000 7T
8,500,001/ 7T 29,000,000/ 7T

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 -
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 1
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14. 8K (&E8) &F 14. (Loss)/Earnings per share
KATHE ANEBEEREAREE(EE) The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
BATHE N EURETE attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

20155 20144
T +
2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
MERERL#E(ER), BFMEH (Loss)/Earning for the year attributable
REFERNRIEE AESL(EE),/ to owners of the Company for the
BA(ARE) purposes of basic and diluted
(loss)/earnings per share (RMB) (690,479) 483,276
MERERRESE(EE), BRI MEH/ Weighted average number of ordinary
TR NtE T shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 2,116,050 2,118,246
BRAR R HARITEERENITEERAR The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years
MFEHME - HETEEZE20155F K2014512 ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 does not assume the exercise
A3ALLFENSREE(ESE) BFET of all of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise
ERRZERREEREITE - prices of those options are higher than the average market price
of the shares.
15. R & 15. Dividends
2015% 20144
ARET T ARETTT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
FARIRNEKRE. Dividends paid during the year:

20145 REIR B - FAR0.09ETT 2014 final dividend: HK$0.09

(2014%F : 2013FE REAMR S, ¢ (2014: 2013 final dividend: HK$0.085)

FH%0.085/8 7T ) per share 151,746 143,315
BZE2015F12A31BIEFE  EFC#EES A final dividend HK$0.05 per share (2014: HK$0.09 per share),
105,584,000/ 7T (20144 : 190,635,000/ L) amounting to HK$105,584,000 (2014: HK$190,635,000) in respect of
(& %0.057% 70 (20144F © & AR0.097 L)) 2 the year ended 31 December 2015, equivalent to RMB93,437,000
REARR B - BE RN A R#93437,0007T(2014 (2014: RMB150,392,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
F: AR®150392,0007T) « HARKRREAE subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

FRBRELE -
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16. Y13 ~ B RFXRE 16. Property, plant and equipment

BT HKERRE RE HRREE  ARIE )
ARETT ARETR AR%Tn ARETR ARETn ARET:
Plant and Motor  Furniture Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2 osT
20145118 At 1 January 2014 1,356,688 5,687,580 43409 349873 145,782 7,583,332
NE Additions 51,762 191,079 1977 38,895 386,577 670,290
B Transfer 122,561 343,140 520 2,721 (468,942) -
HERMHE Eliminated on disposals (1,057) (65,490) (1,088) (1773) - (69,408)
01412318 At 31 December 2014 1529954 6156309 4818 389716 63417 8184214
FE Additions 8452 88,787 1,186 6760 8732 4507
i Transfer 22526 242,186 - 13236 (277,948) -
ERESELERGINE Transfer to properties for sale (757) - - - (2,184) (2941)
s Written off (2,346) (6,710) - - - (9,056)
HEREE Eliminated on disposals (1,375) (52942) (649) (2475) - (57,441)
#0156 124318 At 31 December 2015 1556454 6427630 45355 43737 70607 853783
ZitERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
0141818 At 1 January 2014 321,281 2,537,701 27,775 202,560 - 3,089,317
REERY Charge for the year 72462 553,031 7,208 44,864 - 677,565
HERE Eliminated on disposals (24) (36,796) (1,047) (1,666) - (39,533)
20144128318 At 31 December 2014 33719 3053936 BB 45758 - 3707349
AEERY Charge for the year 75397 545,346 5,531 54,147 - 680421
HE Impairment 255 485 = - - 740
b Written off (513) (3,49) - - - (4.009)
HERKH Eliminated on disposals (466) (45,115) (597) (2.297) - (48475)
R20154128318 At 31 December 2015 468392 3551156 38870 297608 - 4356006
RAE CARRYING VALUES
120158128318 At 31 December 2015 1,088,062 2876474 6,485 139,629 70,607 4,181,257
120148128318 At 31 December 2014 1,136,235 3,102,373 10,882 143,958 03417 4,456,865
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16. Y15 ~ #Es K& (&)

R2015F12A31H » AEBEMETEFHAR
MIBEERETE  REEARAR148074,000
T(2014%12 8318 : ARM165,547,0007T) °

W - MR LRERBEREN THIEETH
ERFHRRNRERANRRISEEEE

e 0 KA (AREE AE)
HEE T RME  5-104F
YRE 54

BALREE S5F

AEBEHEABAEERE I AARKE
50,738,0007T (20144 : A R #9,329,0007T )
¥ A R #163,913,00070(20145F : A R #
17523500070 ) FIIEF « B RZE - BA
SEBRITERREMERIEEA o

BFEURFE L FRIREFREERE -
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB148,074,000 (31 December 2014: RMB165,547,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of RMB50,738,000 (2014: RMB9,329,000) and
RMB163,913,000 (2014: RMB175,235,000) respectively, to secure
bank loans and other loans of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.
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17.Prepaid lease payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

20154 20144
AR¥T ARETF T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BIRE B WFTER DT T ¢ Analysed for reporting purpose as:
— BNHEER — Current portion 13,241 13,441
— JEBNERER > — Non-current portion 469,366 482,254
482,607 495,695

e BN B A HA20 5 504 A R HE + i
FA#E -

A& BB EEREAE A RE104,940,0007C
MIEMHEE  AASEMNRITREMERE
AR (20144 + AFR#64,939,0007T) °

REZE2014F12831BILFEE - XEBBE
2 5 A R #573,466,0007T AL 1A 0 B L ER & 48
AN —IELHESENERR 2 EEYE -

The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the
aggregate carrying amount of RMB104,940,000 to secure bank and
other loans (2014: RMB64,939,000) of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group transferred
an amount of RMB73,466,000 representing one parcel of lands
located in Huantai Shandong, the PRC to properties under
development for sale.
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18. BILEE 18.Intangible assets
SR B RIERE st
ARETTT AREFT AREBETT AR®TT
Proprietary Exploration
Technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
5% COST
20141 H1H At 1 January 2014 128,512 109 80,000 208,621
=T Additions - 1,254 — 1,254
20145128318 & At 31 December 2014 and
20155128318 at 31 December 2015 128,512 1,363 80,000 209,875
BERRE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
720141 A1H At 1 January 2014 29,328 52 = 29,380
REEHT Charge for the year 11,225 160 = 11,385
2014128318 At 31 December 2014 40,553 212 = 40,765
REERY Charge for the year 10,857 260 - 1,117
BB Impairment = - 40,000 40,000
201512 H31H At 31 December 2015 51,410 472 40,000 91,882
RE{E CARRYING VALUES
20155128318 At 31 December 2015 77,102 891 40,000 117,993
2014128318 At 31 December 2014 87,959 1,151 80,000 169,110
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REEMBETLEEDRAE=TEE

B5 Bl & B RS E R A B B R e Y AT
A WIRERED BIRSFEER10F M3F
ESFEH o

20124 - REEAREAREBET
ME=FRERBEASR G B EER R
B - AR EZEARERSNELERES
BARNEBRLBEBRNEZRMEL)
WHETR S I F A E B LA A& IR ARG
BENREELEOERMHE -

BEEPEMRERFEENEARTE - R
BEMEETAEBMEBFE - NEBRA
ERBEEERE - BR20155F108 © A&EE
BRI R E AR FEE2017F108 ° B
REZREREE - ZMERSRBEDELRE
N RRABEERE - RELE20155F12A31
BIEFEERRBREARKIOBET
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18.Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2015, the Group extended the exploration rights for a
period of two years till October 2017. Due to decrease in mining
areas of the two mines upon renewal of the exploration rights, the
directors of the Company considered that impairment of RMB40
million was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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19. Rt E DR R 19. Interests in associates

20155 20144
ARET T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000

A B IE EHEE S A Rl HIRE K AN Cost of investments in associates
unlisted in the PRC 980 980

FEAE W R R T - HBRE AR S Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividends received 15 842
995 1,822

150

20154 &2014F12A31H » REBEE QD

The details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2015 and

TIMEBMT 2014 are as follows:
ERAR EHERKA  AYER IBERRE  FEROEBN ARERENZREX rEEFEREELS TEER
Form of business Country of Principal place Class of Registered capital held  Proportion of voting rights Principal
Name of entity structure establishment  of operation share held by the Group held by the Group ~  activity
2015% 20148 2015% 0145
2015 2014 2015 2014
FEATREFMHER  ARAT i P AMER 49% 4%% 40% 0% BERHEER
ARAT (Hza) (Wia) RERRL
BIRA
Chifeng North Dongyue Limited fiability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 40% 40% Production and
New Material company capital (Note a) (Notea)  sales of
Development Co, Ltd. fluorogypsum
Bt - Notes:
@ F2011E28188  ARFHMBARINSHE (@)  On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals
é%ﬂéﬁ{tlﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂiﬁ—%éﬁﬁ%:ﬁﬂj Co. Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
%A}% ST B EE o %%S&%@ﬁ;?‘i%ﬁ independent third party to establish North Dongyue. The Group is able
ﬁ:ﬁiﬁ?‘ﬂ ) %HE%}TZE@?ZQEZH%% to exercise significant influence over North Dongyue because it has the
Eiﬁﬁwéigsﬁﬁjﬁ%\ﬁiqﬂﬁg%% . o power to appoint two out of five directors of that company under the
o § Articles of the Association of that company.
REEEBRAR —E—HFFH
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19. Interests in associates (Continued)

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.
tARE North Dongyue
20154 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEE Total assets 8,712 10,661
BER Total liabilities 5,556 6,943
BEFRE Net assets 3,156 3,718
AEBERGEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group 1,546 1,822
HAb A Other adjustments:
AEFE AL A RIAHEE Sales from the Group to associate (551) -
995 1,822
20155 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 8,291 9,257
Bt N TIEA AEBRERN(ER), 85 (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to
owner of the associate (1) 578
REFEEL(BE),FT Group's share of (loss)/profit (1) 283
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19. REEE N B RERR(E) 19. Interests in associates (Continued)
A RE (&) North Dongyue (Continued)
LB EREENEE QRSN EREE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
ERHRRRA SRR PR the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

20154 20144
ARET T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
A RENEEFE Net assets of North Dongyue 3,156 3,718
NEENIL T R EFTA =5 Proportion of Group’s ownership
interest in North Dongyue 49% 49%
REBNIE T RE#E=REE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in North Dongyue 995 1,822
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

20154 20144
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEMRAES - LK ATIER Unlisted equity securities, at cost
— IR BIFIREER — Shandong Innovation Investment
BRAR (Hzta) Co., Ltd. (Note a) 2,324 2,324
—EEREE® NEER - Zibo ZhangDian Huitong
BRAR(REEB]) Microfinance Co., Ltd.
(Pt 3Ea) (“ZhangDian Huitong”) (Note a) 66,703 66,703
—ILR¥BECKERERES - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
AR A&l ([SPOBE]) Economic Investment Co., Ltd.
(BizEb) ("SPOBE") (Note b) 126,256 126,256
—HRERERERNDERAA — China MinSheng Investment
(TP R&Z D (M) Co., Ltd. (“CMIC") (Note c) 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,195,283 1,195,283

FiiIE ETEERER
E o RREBRERANRERERE AR
EEANFENGHESELRE A RES

RRHERNTHEBEMSEAE o

AFLAE BRI R A

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in
private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair

value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured

reliably.

Mtk - Notes:

@ ZEERAETEKNIMNLAETRE AEER (@) The entities are private entities that were established in the PRC.
UJ%E R EBRA R A AR5 9.9%H) IR A1 The Group holds 9.9% of the equity interest in Shandong Innovation
= RRREERRFE 5% IR AL o Investment Co,, Ltd and holds 15% of the equity interest in ZhangDian

Huitong.
(b) SPOBEF%—Fﬁ \FESEHETIMRIHNALAE (b)  SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
o RELZE2011F12A31HIEFE - AN QF] During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered
SPOBEETi*’ HE 175 5% - 7R #%20,000,0004&SPOBE into a subscription agreement with SPOBE to subscribe 20,000,000
f&fn - #8K (8 %20,000 OOO%E(*E&kE/\/\EM shares in SPOBE at a total contribution of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to
126,256,0007C ) ° FA20144F &% 2015128318 - RMB126,256,000). As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Company had
7R &) 45 20,000,000A%SPOBERZ 15+l H A& A 20,000,000 shares which represents 18.18% (2014: 18.18%) equity interest
EFRET18.18%(20144F : 18.18%) ° in SPOBE.
(0 M214F5H90 K& B REHF E R (© On 9 May 2014, the Group subscribed 1,000,000,000 shares in CMIC,

1,000,000,0008% B 17 + 18 & M A R 122%0% #E -
KR8 A AR %1,000,000,0007T © FRIZ AR
RIMAR] - TEREREREMEEEE -

which represent 2% equity interest in CMIC, at a consideration of
RMB1,000,000,000. CMIC is a company established in the PRC and is
principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
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21, AR IE 21. Deferred taxation
BEEREPTERRER IR sR DT IO ¢ The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

20155 20144
ARMT T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RIEN TR & B Deferred tax assets 453,288 159,473
IR E Deferred tax liabilities (50,147) (57,302)
403,141 102,171
AFEEHREBRELCHBEEE The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(AR REZSHHT : recognised and movements thereon for the year:
KEAER
VERE
I EERA  BHESH  REEN

THAKEN  FERE  ERR  AARE  REER  ERMAE BERR S it
AR ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

Tax
credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified
Distributable Accrualfor -~ grantson property
Profits of PRC ~ Depreciation ~ employee prepaid lease plant,and  Capitalised
Subsidiaries  allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest  Tax losses Others Total

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

K041 F1B At T January 2014 (24.868) (11,362) 54926 59469 133 (6,570) 39,058 5501 116,287
BfREENH Dividend withholding tax paid 16075 - - - - - - - 16075
IMBERZ(MRETA  (Charge) Creditrecognised in

Profit orloss (15371) 2908 (10890) (16958) 17367 1,245 (21670 13178 (30191)
R014E128318 At 31 December 2014 (247164) (8454) 44036 4511 17500 (5329) 17388 18679 102,171
BRI ETA  (Charge) Cedit recognised n

Profit or loss (18,145) 23276 (16,189) 4873 - 1,680 - 305475 300970
015128318 At 31 December 2015 (42,309) 14822 27847 47384 17500 (3,645) 17388 324154 403141
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20184 K 20194 F|HA) o
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21. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB310,699,000 (2014: RMB312,500,000) available for offset against
future profits of whict a deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB69,552,000 (2014: RMB69,552,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining
unused tax losses of RMB241,147,000 (2014: RMB242,948,000) as
it is uncertain whether taxable profit of the corresponding group
entities will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB69,096,000 and RMB37,664,000 that will expire in 2019 and
2020 respectively (2014: RMB216,314,000 and RMB66,912,000 that
will expire in 2018 and 2019 respectively).

(SRS 22. Goodwill
20155 20144
ARBTF T ARBETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AN COST
P1ATEX12A31H At 1 January and 31 December 85,894 85,894

REITREAI - AR84,540,0007T(2014
& AR #84,540,0007T ) K A R 51,354,000
TE(20144F © A R #13540007C ) 2 A B E
DRDETMEREGELESEMGREELS
i) BIMRFEWNBAR : @D TFHED
HBHEBHARRLB SR E R TR
BRAT([REEZ]) - REIZE2015F12 7
NHLEFE  ASEEEBREWALIEM
AIPEERE -

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB84,540,000
(2014: RMB84,540,000) and RMB1,354,000 (2014: RMB1,354,000)
have been allocated to two cash generating units (CGUs)
representing two PRC subsidiaries, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd ("Dongyue
Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
December 2015, management of the Group determines that there
is no impairment of goodwill.
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22,

23.
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EEHA

FEMANARESRIRIEEREEFTE
BE -FENRBEEEECHENTFH
MBRENTA RS RE KRR X 16.60%5T
B - AFHARNASRERA3%NIZEIE
KX - ZERXTDENBRETRIERE
Al BTBEBERETENFORAREES -
EREESENEMEIERRIIE(BER
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EEEHMSERBENER - BEEEM
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BE

2015511 H278 + AR AR — R E A A
IWREEHBEXEERAGI(ERE ) A
—ZBNE=HENEREBERAB(E
7)) EBER)FIL—HERE R R  ##
KEILRBAEHHERZEERAR(EX])
75%HIRNE c BAEILRANSEERE
X% BEERA - WHFEBEAEEEH
Y0 TR B i E 35755 R 38 NS SR B Y A ZROIR ©
R2016%12A318H  EHNEE I ARE
165,897,000 fE BB TE X AIIZ S o M
HRMBE - WHEEERARTK - REFE
TR AR ER BT AIEE o

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

22.

23.

Goodwill (Continued)
Huaxia Shenzhou

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.60%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary

On 27 November 2015, one of the subsidiaries of the Company,
Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd., as purchaser,
entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement with
Hengli Holding Group Co,, Ltd (B J1ZR% = E B PR A 7)) (“Hengli”),
an independent third party, as vendor, intended to acquire 75%
equity interest in Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd (U RBAFEHERIZEBRAF]) (‘Boda”). Boda is engaged in
real estate development business in Shandong. In the opinion of
the Directors, the acquisition will enable the Group for expending
of the real estate business and increase the revenue stream of the
Group. As at 31 December 2016, RMB165,897,000 has been paid
to Hengli as the deposit amount of the acquisition of Boda. As
at the date of the issuance of this report, the acquisition has not
been completed and is subject to fulfillment of certain terms and
conditions.
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2. FE 24.Inventories

20154 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R ROBFE @ Raw materials and consumables 274,668 243,817
ERE Work in progress 63,222 64,063
R Finished goods 375,571 491,981
713,461 799,861

5. EHERE 2 25. Properties for sale
20154 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERERG 2B TYE Completed property for sale 266,730 67,639
EHER®R 2 EEYE Property under development for sale 520,699 736,750
787,429 804,389

REZE2012612A8381ILEE - AEBER
ERE B NFEILREES GO
FEAEHERRZEEYE  BE@EMA%
ETEIEEREAAISPIME - ZERIER
20126 T - BEBESAAH  ME—
HERBZE2014F12A31AEFERT - 5
—HEREE2015F 128318 IEFEEBT o
B8 = BRTEET S AR R ENTE L ©

20155 12H318  (ELERB 2 ERYE
HIBREE A R#442,212,0007C (20145 : AR
#427,759,0007T ) T8 B 18 1A R 5 BA R AR 5T+
—@AMNET -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
management decided to develop residential properties on two
parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong, the PRC
for sale and the relevant development plan had been approved
by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction work was
commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided into five phases
and phase 1 was completed during the year end 31 December
2014 and phase 2 was completed during the year ended 31
December 2015. The remaining three phases was expected to be

completed in the coming two years.

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of RMB442,212,000 (2014: RMB427,759,000)
are expected to be completed within twelve months from the end
of reporting period.
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26.
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EZREMERRIE 26. Trade and other receivables
20154 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2 5 FoE Trade receivables 1,296,531 831,551
B RERE R Less: allowance for doubtful debts (2,918) (3,818)
1,293,613 827,733
B R R Prepayments for raw materials 23,313 36,176
JEUIE B R Value added tax receivables 7,757 13,696
TEEMEEAENTENTIE Prepaid taxes arising from pre-sale
of properties 19,445 39,588
A A Wealth management contracts - 955,000
JiE Ui Bt 2 X R 5K I8 Amount due from associates 2,107 2,582
124 R H iU TR Deposits and other receivables 45,918 31,703
1,392,153 1,906,478

B o EWRIEBFEN2015F12A31HEAR
#1,072,350,0007C Z FEUR 4R (2014F © AR
#584,006,0007T ) °

AEBGLTRFPZESRUGEEES R
AP0 - BRI — M 90H MZk180
BAZIH - BIEEZ A (R EKSERB
HHEE)  ANEERREHAERZESE
WHRIE(N B REEBE) MRS 250
T o

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivable amounting to
RMB1,072,350,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB584,006,000).

Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue
recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.
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26. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

20155 20144F

AR¥T ARETIT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

9B K Within 90 days 490,307 569,267
91BZE180H 91-180 days 784,301 250,277
1808 MA E Above 180 days 19,005 8,189
1,293,613 827,733

EARBEEAHEFA  AEESREHEP
HEERTHEBEREPHEEERNREESR
PHREAREE - TPHERBEENERTR
FEEIZMIR ° 99% (20145 : 99%) 7 %1 HA
NARBEZEZERREREEEAETHR
FEATR -  AEBERTEFEHNEE - 5
RAREEREZEERE -

AEECESRERRFBELEHPRERET
B A& A R #39,42000070(20144F : A R ¥
27,340,000 ) Z BRI - RIRE B AEBHMm
AEBWEGHREBBELRE - A5H
WARFE I FAEREC RIS RIER

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 99% (2014: 99%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The
Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending on
the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB39,420,000 (2014:
RMB27,340,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these

balances.
20154 20144
AR¥T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
91HZE180H 91-180 days 20,415 19,151
181HZ=2365H 181-365 days 19,005 8,189
39,420 27,340
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26. B 5 K H A FEUWRRIR ()

HREEERYEREZ(CEARERR
FF A A Y E - ZXE@*EiLi%ﬁh
R - ARFEERR/REFHAEELR
REF °

26. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
the Company consider they are in good credit quality.

RIREEEF Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20154 20144
AR¥T T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FHERR Balance at beginning of the year 3,818 6,169

RO Z 5 WG RE Reversal of impairment on

trade receivables (900) (139)
R AN e N ] M i S8 /9 5B Amounts written off as uncollectible = 2,212)
FRAE R Balance at end of the year 2,918 3,818

DA LB AR BB B 5 B RO
O -

NS EEENTEE ﬁﬁﬁwl\ﬁ’]ifﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ

The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
which are considered not recoverable.

The Group's account receivables that are denominated in

HY N &= B FE UG BR RS 0 currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:
EH AR¥
Tt Tt
uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
20155 12H31H As at 31 December 2015 16,136 104,781
201412 H31H As at 31 December 2014 17,210 105,308
JEULHE & N R RIE AERT - B RIREX Amount due from associates were unsecured, interest-free and
8 - repayable on demand.
160 REEEERLAE —ZT—HFFRH
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26. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, approximately RMB978.2 million
were wealth management contracts (2014: RMB955 million). As
disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the
amount were fully written off during the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

ZEERK 27.Entrusted loans
20154 20144
AR¥T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEER Entrusted loans 336,300 370,000

REZE2015F12A318IEFE » AEBTFR
ZEERHOARE1,9038 & (20144 © A
K ¥2,45038 & 7T ) ° 20156 12H318 -
ZRAERNER BN ARKE3B63BE T
(20145 : ARE370HETT) - BEHAR
K306 EBTHNEXTERERFAERRE
B AEERA  FBREBARKEIBET
AL g E -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
placed entrusted loans of approximately RMB1,903 million (2014:
RMB2,450.3 million). As at 31 December 2015, the balances of
entrusted loans were approximately RMB336.3 million (2014:
RMB370 million). Amount of approximately RMB306.3 million of
the entrusted loans had been settled subsequent to the financial
year end. In the opinion of the Group, the remaining balance of
RMB30 million can be fully recovered.
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28.CIKFHERITIER $R1T4 8% 28.Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
B Cash

BEMNEE  EHAEREBERERENE Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB42,500,000,
ERRITERD B/ A R ¥42,500,0007T RMB45,745,000 and RMB24,970,000 (2014: RMB185,145,000, Nil and
A R #457450007C & A R %24,970,0007C Nil) have been pledged to secure the bills payable, letter of credit
(20145 + AR#185,145,0007C * ERE) ° and mortgage loan, respectively.
BIRBEITERRBITERIDZEF KRG Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
B BEEFRITFERRIRITAEARN2015F rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
12831 HEYINHE FE I F A XKD Bl A2.80% bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2015 were
(20144F : 2.80%) £2.0.35%(20144F : 0.35%) ° 2.80% (2014: 2.80%) and 0.35% (2014: 0.35%) respectively.

AR E B TN I se & AN BB The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in currencies
AR BRI TAARETI AT other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

X7 AR
Tz Tz
uss RMB
'000 '000
20159128318 As at 31 December 2015 4,146 26,906
20149128318 As at 31 December 2014 5,706 34918
BT AR¥
T Tz
HK$ RMB
'000 '000
7201512 A31H As at 31 December 2015 33,844 28,355

M2014F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 - -
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29.Trade and other payables & deposits
received from pre-sale of properties

(a) Trade and other payables

2015%F 20144

ARET T ARET T

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

B S ENFIR Trade payables 1,358,497 1,255,355

TR F A Receipt in advance from customers 69,920 74,741

R AT B T 38 M (B ) Payroll payable (Note i) 143,950 185,426
UG EE 2 - MBS N R Payable for acquisition of property,

P 5k A (B Rl plant and equipment (Note ii) 87,281 108,798
HAb ERFIE Other tax payables 30,173 32,323
Y FEIEE AR Other deposits in relation to property

Hhize development project 58,000 58,000
EHERBZ EEMEDN Construction cost payables for properties

JE A5t e TR A under development for sale 156,957 191,121
FoAth fE A~ R pE ST 3R I (B =) Other payables and accruals (note iii) 289,519 66,855
HEt Total 2,194,297 1,972,619
Pt Notes:

(ii)

(i)

M20156128318  BABITHEMEE
—EATEKNBARIEELRESRE
B A R #46,370,0007T (20145 : A R ¥
62,631,0007T) ° B & REHE A& B B ffd
BRARAIEENZEMHRESEME IR
B R AR IRERETE - WIRESHFEIA
AR ERGHE - HREHTE B R —
FEFEHIE THIREMERES
FRHEO TR ©

WEE Y3 - HER R H BN IR E R
BENERBLEREZKE=EAAZN
VRN ANEZETAFIEHEZTE ©

Hith el R gt SOARE RN —FA
R(ARRIESRHEAERR)FBEARE
100,000,0007T, ©

(i) As at 31 December 2015, included in the payroll payable is a
provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB46,370,000 (2014: RMB62,631,000).
The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire
obligation for social insurance fund for employees of PRC
subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant national
regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of
an employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the
minimum limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau
each year.

(i)  The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
will be settled three months after the completion of installation
of the plant and machinery which is recorded in the addition of
construction in progress during the year.

(i) Included in other payable and accruals, is an amount of

RMB100,000,000 due to a company, which the director of the
Company is a former shareholder.
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200 ZB5REMENRERKBETE 29.Trade and other payables & deposits received

EVEZECRIZE (F) from pre-sale of properties (Continued)
(a) EZREMENARIE(E) (a) Trade and other payables (Continued)

B 5 I8 815 E AR ¥508,319,000
J0(20144F : AR #698,855,0007T ) 2 &
NEER - ENERBASENEEIFR
TRESRIERER -

RIBEROFHEENR0OA - KEHE

EHFTEEMERRERBR - AR
A BN RIEREEMRABE -

REZZEH - BHRNFENKERD

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting
to RMB508,319,000 (2014: RMB698,855,000). Bills payable are
secured by the Group'’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,

T2HT : presented based on invoice date:
20155 20144
AR®T T ARETTT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
30HA Within 30 days 472,159 321,912
31HZ90H 31-90 days 306,426 481,385
91HZE180H 91-180 days 309,855 399,077
181 HZE365H 181-365 days 250,316 38,301
1FEZ2F 1-2 years 9,162 9,337
BB More than 2 years 10,579 5,343
1,358,497 1,255,355

R2014F12A318 - ESRNFIBERE
FER M B B A R A FEIE R R R 2
FRIE A R #4,390,0007T  BRER TYFA30H
Ao BERBEZEEHN —RAIZ6ME
A fEHERG TR ERERNET
RN BRER TORA90H A ©

164 REKEBRAR —B—HFFR

As at 31 December 2014, included in the trade payables
were amounts due to two non-controlling shareholders of
two subsidiaries of RMB4,390,000 which are aged within 30
days. The general credit period given by them is three to six
months. The construction cost payables for properties under
development for sale are aged within 90 days.
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29. Trade and other payables & deposits received
from pre-sale of properties (Continued)
(a) Trade and other payables (Continued)

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant

AR group entities are set out below:
EpH ARHE
Tt Tt
uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
20156128318 As at 31 December 2015 3,198 20,755
2014512 831H As at 31 December 2014 8,696 53,213

(b) REFEEWEZEREZES

(b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties

20154 20144
ARBT ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
KEFEEYEZBEBILE (MIFE)  Deposits received from pre-sale of
properties (Note) 422,670 539,550

et - ZERANTEBREMELT P AKS
I

Note: The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.
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30. 88 30. Borrowings
20154 20144
AR¥TF T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIIRITE R Unsecured bank loans 3,333,140 3,066,265
BEMIBITEK Secured bank loans 49,700 20,000
AL E M E R Unsecured other loans = 121,420
BHEMEMER Secured other loans 36,526 68,839
3,419,366 3,276,524
AR AT HAR AEE A BREE Carrying amount repayable:
1A Within one year 1,831,754 1,390,437
BN ERNEEpES More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 1,461,612 1,554,531
ZR2F B EBESF More than two years, but not more
than five years 126,000 331,556
3,419,366 3,276,524
B TR BAE TR FAEIEIFIE  Less: amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities 1,831,754 1,390,437
1518 B BAgkIE Amount due after one year 1,587,612 1,886,087

R2015F128318 + AR #¥49,700,0007T
(20144 : AR#20,000,00070) KA IR TT
EXBmASBERERAEARARE22066000
TL(2014%5 © AR¥59,329,0007T ) U (2014
F:BF)AREmAERARK44525000
To(2014%5 : A R #2,235,0007T ) & 78 1+ 7
SIEAEE ZSHEERRTEFIEFE

4.85%%6.25% (20144 : 6.00%ZE 7.20%) 5T & °

166 REEEBRAR —B—HFFR

As at 31 December 2015, secured bank loans of RMB49,700,000
(2014: RMB20,000,000) were secured by the Group’s buildings
(2014:buildings) with the aggregate carrying amount of
RMB22,066,000 (2014: RMB9,329,000) and prepaid lease payments
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB44,525,000 (2014:
RMB2,235,000). The secured bank loans carry interest at4.85%
106.25% (2014: 6.00% to 7.20%) per annum.
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M2015512H318 - B — R mME#EL &
BEAEMERBIEEES5625000FT(HEE
B A R #36,526,5007T ) (20144F : 11,250,000
FL(HHE R ARK638390005T))  AAE
[ BR M 42 1B A R #528,672,0007T FIIEF » BR
T 42 (E A R #163,913,00070(20144F © AR#E
175,235,0007T ) B #28 R s LA KR BREL 4B LA
R #60,4150007T(20144F : A R ®62,704,000
TLBBENESERAER - ZEFIZMAER
TRIZEFRBINF B3%TE - F - NEH
RERERENREMNFNERAIAARE
2,125,00070 (20144 « AR#3,157,0007T) °

MR20145F12A318 ' EMEEKBERBIE
% BB A R ¥41,420,0007 o H 1t £ K
RITREMEFILZE T RF B F B440%FE
7.04%(2014%F : 585%Z&7.75%)5T & ©

AEEERBERRRANIMA(HEH
EERWT
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, secured other loan made by a
financial institution represented borrowings of US$5,625,000
(equivalent to RMB36,526,500 (2014: US$11,250,000 (equivalent
to RMB68,839,000)) which was secured by the Group's buildings
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB28,672,000,
plant and machinery with the aggregate carrying amount of
RMB163,913,000 (2014: RMB175,235,000) and prepaid lease
payments with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB60,415,000
(2014: RMB62,704,000). The loan carries interest at LIBOR+3% per
annum. During the year, interest expense of RMB2,125,000 (2014:
RMB3,157,000) was paid and payable by the Group in relation to
the loans.

As at 31 December 2014, included in the unsecured other loans
are interest free loans of RMB41,420,000. Other unsecured bank
and other loans carry fixed and variable interests ranging from
4.40% to 7.04% (2014: 5.85% to 7.75%) per annum.

The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

20154 20144
ARET T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings:
15K Within one year 546,400 923,500
ENERERN EEpES In more than one year but not more
than two years 438,700 400,000
ZHNF AN HRIBSF In more than two years but not more
than five years 60,000 -
1,045,100 1,323,500
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30. 5 & ()
Besh - AREBAT B EHFILT -

#2015%F12831H

WEREE A=

AR#2223,73000070 IZEERFIEMN0%E
15% (AN [E @ A H)
= 615%%7.75%)

AR #150,536,0007T fRERERTT R ZE 17 8. 003%

- BISIRITRIZER B 3%

72014%12H31H

WEREH ilh

ARB1684,985,0007T

AFE#68,839,0007T

AE#157,780,0007T

REEZHE M0%E
15% (A FEFEAR
I : 6.15%%7.75%)

R EERTT R HF 2 003%

BB RITRRIFE03%

FRNERRBREERMN K RRBIRTRIZE
KE/ BBROTEAEFSES - BEEZRF
PP BARRITRM  HMHBEARRITHE

Mot B R 12

© AR EE A R B

MIEEFNERERRTE - WRBIRTRENR
BT BHEEN SN BEFEENRRE R
BEEBRITRAXFEF ENEENEHNE

HEHRE °

FEZENREAEFHEE -

REEBERIF =

Z-0LFFR

30. Borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

Loan amount as at
31 December 2015

Interest rate

RMB2,223,730,000

RMB150,536,000

Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
6.15% to 7.75%)

LIBOR plus 3%

HIBOR plus 3%

Loan amount as at
31 December 2014

Interest rate

RMB1,684,985,000

RMB68,839,000

RMB157,780,000

Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
6.15% to 7.75%)

LIBOR plus 3%

HIBOR plus 3%

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate and the LIBOR/HIBOR. The standard lending rate
is promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of

borrowing at standard lending rate will be reset when there is

a change in the borrowing rate promulgated by the People's

Bank of China. The interest of borrowings at LIBOR is reset on a

quarterly basis and the interest of borrowings at HIBOR is reset on

a monthly basis.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.
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30. Borrowings (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20155 20144
2015 2014

ERRAE Effective interest rate:
TEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 4.60%%26.65% 6.15%27.75%
4.60% to 6.65% 6.15% to 7.75%
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 3.2%%E7.2% 3T77%ET.76%

3.2% to 7.2% 3.77% to 7.76%

S AR SR ) AR e T B KM DS B )
A EBEERFINT -

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

Ep AR¥
Tt Tt
uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
201512 H31H As at 31 December 2015 200,625 133,930
R2014F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 31,250 191,219
BT AR
Fi Fi
HKS$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
M2015%F12H31H As at 31 December 2015 120,000 100,536
M20145F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 20,000 157,780

REZE2015F12A31HIEFE - AEBEERSE
SR B AREE74552800070(20144F : AR
#51,124,042,0007T ) WU FT K 58 HRERIT B 3K
&5 A ANRB1587,612,00070(20145F A
R #1,722,198,00070 ) W EM A R BIR1TE

=
AN

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB1,745,528,000 (2014: RMB1,124,042,000) and unsecured
long-term bank loans in the amount of RMB1,587,612,000 (2014:
RMB1,722,198,000).

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2015 169



mEMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Z2015F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2015

30. & (&)

REMEHRR AEEBUTABABER
B

30. Borrowings (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
undrawn borrowing facilities:

20154 20144

AR¥T ARETIT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’'000

R1ERE|HR Expiring within one year 2,570,500 1,886,087
@1 F 5 H Expiring beyond one year 100,300 1,390,437
2,670,800 3,276,524

IR FE WA

BRI WRTE Y - #28 MR
AEBRERDRANBRERLERBEH
ENHEESRMEAS

31.

31.Deferred income

Deferred income represents government grants received in
respect of property, plant and equipment, costs incurred by the
Group in relation to development activities and the prepaid lease
payments for existing office and plant.

FRREEWAREZEZIAT Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
2015%F 20144
ARET T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
»®1A1R At 1 January 245,045 259,174
NE Additions 72,587 9,137
EE AR Release to profit or loss (24,826) (23,266)
M12H31H8 At 31 December 292,806 245,045
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31 EFEW A (48) 31. Deferred income (Continued)
BWREVER DT : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
2015%F 20144
ARET T AREET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
BVERER > Current portion 28,755 10,623
JEBNERER > Non-current portion 264,051 234,422
292,806 245,045
32. kA& 32.Share capital
R EE ;&N
Th% ARETIT
Number Share
of shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
%018 T E AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
JATE Authorised:
720144 % 2015F1 B1HA K At 1 January 2014 and 2015 and
2015%F12H31H 31 December 2015 4,000,000 382,200
BEETRAR Issued and fully paid:
7201451 /18 At 1 January 2014 2,119,319 201,013
B0 MR SHRR D (B EE) Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) (1,152) 91)
20151 818 At 1 January 2015 2,118,167 200,922
AN R D) Share repurchased and cancelled (Note) (4,776) (382)
M2015%F12H31H At 31 December 2015 2,113,391 200,540
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32. RA (&)

iz : RREFERN  ARRBEBEEHARIMA
RABRBEEARTRMHMT :

32. Share capital (Continued)

Note: During both years, the Company repurchased its own shares through The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

ERo.1ETH B& RIE EHENAE

BEHS EEREE BT BT BT
Aggregate

No. of ordinary consideration

shares of Highest Lowest paid

Date of repurchase HK$0.1 each HKS HK$ HKS
8/7/2015 3,246,000 212 1.8 6,082,870
24/8/2015 1,280,000 1.93 1.66 2,206,829
26/8/2015 250,000 1.9 1.74 450,514
4,776,000 8,740,213

7/1/2014 300,000 3.02 2.94 894,000
27/1/2014 352,000 2.86 267 973,280
28/1/2014 100,000 2.78 2.69 273,500
5/2/2014 400,000 2.70 2.63 1,066,000
1,152,000 3,206,780

33

172

LA BB RS AR FESH o

B X 17 48 & 588,740,213 7T (A F 1 A R #7,004,000
70 ) (20144F : 3,206,7807% 7T (48 1 A R #52,535,000
JL) ) ABE D] Eat R (p -

FA - BEARANMBARBE HEXBEALRT
Ef RS ©

Z

AR AR 2 ¥ VR IR

RATERAREEAERET S RIERE
HEI(TEE]) DR 20075E 11 H16 B @8
FRBRMERMN  EEZEMNARBES
REEBEKES - REFE - XAAREFEA
MEEREE(BEARRRENEB QRN
EERES)BLERENRBEARAARRS

20155 K2014F 12318 * R ARBEE
AIEENEET I T E R E R AR 1T B A
BEEES RAERAR G o

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

The total amount of HK$8,740,213 (2014: HKS3,206,780), equivalent to
RMB7,004,000 (2014: RMB2,535,000) was paid to repurchase the above
shares.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

33. Share-based payments

The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under
the Schemes, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of share in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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33. Share-based payments (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 135,900,000 (2014: 141,300,000),
representing 6.43% (2014: 6.67%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

REL B
BREER & B BB THEH TEE HAFE
Fair value
Date of Exercise at grant
Option type grant Vesting period Exercise period price date
BXARBEABRESS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
BERRAESTE
Share Option Scheme:
BRIEENERE
Options to directors
FERRREA 1/6/2011 01/06/2011Z201/06/2012  01/06/2012&01/06/2016  8.13/87T 3.067/87C
Option A 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.067
FEhEB 1/6/2011 01/06/2011Z201/06/2013  01/06/2013E01/06/2016  8.1377T 320177
Option B 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.201
Bl AEC 1/6/2011 01/06/2011Z201/06/2014  01/06/2014%01/06/2016  8.13/87T 331487
Option C 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.314
FEARMED 1/6/2011 01/06/2011Z201/06/2015  01/06/2015501/06/2016  8.1377T 341187
Option D 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.411
BRI EENBERE
Options to employees
FE AR e 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012  01/06/2012Z%01/06/2016  8.13/7T 3.06778 7T
Option E 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.067
HE AR R 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013  01/06/2013%E01/06/2016  8.138 7T 32017
Option F 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.201
FERRHEG 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014  01/06/2014%01/06/2016  8.13/ 87T 331478 7T
Option G 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.314
5 AR e 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015 01/06/2015201/06/2016 8138 7T 341187
Option H 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016  HK$8.13 HK$3.411
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33. UM AN RIE (E) 33. Share-based payments (Continued)

A TARFBTBEERZ2015F12A31HIEFER The following table discloses the movement of the share options
FERRREE D) during the year ended 31 December 2015:

R2015F181H 720155128311

e RATHE 22 e RATHE

TR T TR

Outstanding Outstanding

at 1.1.2015 Forfeited at 31.12.2015

iB IR R I Option type 000 000 000

RERARHEA Option A 8,500 = 8,500

BB Option B 8,500 - 8,500

RERRHEC Option C 8,500 = 8,500

FEARIED Option D 8,500 = 8,500

FE AR e Option E 26,825 (1,350) 25,475

FE AR R Option F 26,825 (1,350) 25,475

BRREG Option G 26,825 (1,350) 25,475

B FEH Option H 26,825 (1,350) 25,475

141,300 (5,400) 135,900

2016 FEF4BF  Exercisable at the end

CIEGRtd of the year 2016 135,900
hNHEFH77fE(E Weighted average exercise price 8.13/B T 8.13& T
HK$8.13 HK$8.13
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LA RIBFEEE2014F12A31 B IEEEH
B S

REMBHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E2015F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

33. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options
during the year ended 31 December 2014:

201451 18 2014512 A318
B AR T 2818 B AR T
T T & T
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1.1.2014 Forfeited at 31.12.2014
B R Option type ‘000 ‘000 '000
RERARHEA Option A 8,500 - 8,500
BB Option B 8,500 = 8,500
RERRHEC Option C 8,500 - 8,500
FEARHED Option D 8,500 = 8,500
AR HEE Option E 27,200 (375) 26,825
FE AR R Option F 27,200 (375) 26,825
REIREG Option G 27,200 (375) 26,825
FE AR fEH Option H 27,200 (375) 26,825
142,800 (1,500) 141,300

20155 E4REE  Exercisable at the end
AJ{T{E of the year 2015 105,975
INREFI97TE(E Weighted average exercise price 8.13/8 7T 8.13/8 7T
HK$8.13 HK$8.13

RIFEBH - FetR2011Ec A1 BRERE
IS AE A F{E A A R #5405,174,0007T © HEFE QD
FENANE - SFEATEREE EER

st

E_o

B ZE2015F 12831 HILFE » REERAR
AIE & LAY BB AR A e SR S A R #59,525,000
TC(20144F © AR#36,532,0007T) ©

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 1 June 2011
at the date of grant was RMB405,174,000. These fair values were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The Group recognised the expense of RMB9,525,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB36,532,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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34, A&IE 34. Commitments
M20155F12H31H » REEEARERAERE At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments
s as follows:
20155 20144
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
BAREE Capital Commitments
BRAWIEYZE - s KRG Capital expenditure in respect of
HEARZH - EFTAE acquisition of property, plant and
RNIEARE IR NEE equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 30,035 75,496
BRAFTHERIEIR B AR Capital expenditure in respect of the
S BRI ERESE assessment of the exploration
MR N projects contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements - 4,248
30,035 79,744
H A iE Other Commitments
ERAERERG RS Construction commitment contracted
RIFE L ASE - BEFJAER in respect of properties under
TEiR & PR NS development for sale contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 92,298 261,469
122,333 341,213
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B E2015F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

35. Lease commitments

AEBERAEBEA The Group as lessee
20154 20144
ARBT T ARETT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

FARNKEEHERERSNR Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year:

S Premises 2,537 1,513
HE L Leasehold land 9,280 7,774
11,817 9,287

REEHHR - REBRBESAIREHELEE
ExEREEASMNR - HIHERWD
T

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

2015%F 20144

AR¥ T ARBEFTT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’'000

1A Within one year 5,971 7,095
F)FEEESF(BEEEMRE) In the second and fifth inclusive 23,834 27,863
BiESF Over five years 52,114 67,849
81,919 102,807

REMENREERAKBRES T LU0E
S - LR FHRHI20F -

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of 20 years.
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36. BEALTRS 36. Related party transactions
EFR - BEGEEMBEREAITEI » NEE Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
BHET NIEATRS ¢ Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:
(a) BEEMHE (a) Purchase of raw materials
20154 20144
ARET T ARET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEIE AR AR R hE e Non-controlling interest 3,513 3,596
(b) EEEIE A S FH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FR EEREMEFEEEA SN The remuneration of directors and other members of key
R management during the year was as follows:
2015% 20144
ARET T ARETIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
R HE B & A Short-term employee benefits 37,275 35,285
BRIREF Post-employment benefits 17 26
BY¥ESE  FTETR Share options granted to directors,
AERTFEERBAB chief executive and key
A B RS management personnel 5,773 11,429
43,065 46,740
37. RIKEFIEtH & 37.Retirement benefits plans
AEBEEFHEANESR T E S Em T HREE The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
EREISRNEFE SR E - AREAR managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
AFEMERE TR L (RHMAAETE) © local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
REBRNNES - ARENE—RT2Y a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
R ERTRIELIE RN - benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these

schemes is to make the specified contributions.
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38. KA RIMI B A Bl =E1E 38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
GUENET-+ 4 B&fi/ KT ARRENLH L
WRARER gzax Fis B8R By e B B REELE  ZERE
WSE - N4E WSE N4E 05E uE
T % b % b % %
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
orregistration/  Class of registered held by the Company Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation share held share capital Directly Indirectly held by the Company  Principal activities
2015 2014 215 014 215 2014
00 % % % % % %
FERAT G &R AR 3007 10000 10000 - S0000 000 HEREEBMECE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered captal RMBo41 360 Manufacture and sale of
oolytetrafluoroethylene
RELT G AR ARE30007 - - 10000 000 10000 10000 EEREELAY
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340000 Manufacture and sale of
refrgerant
FEEz i &% AEBR007T - - 6000 60 6000 6N AEREEE
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital RABB0000 Production and sales of
it
RERERMIARLT  pE &% AREI66TT B0 B0 BN B0 WA 00 4EREERE
(Hika) R Registered captal (20145 - AR100007) Production and sales of
Dongying Dongyue Precision RMB12,667 bromine
Chemicals Co, Ltd (Note ) (2014RMB10,000)
REAE T &% AREa0007 0979 69 BB B8 B2 BL PEREEEREMD
Dongyue Fluo-Siicon PRC Regstered capital RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
Hongfong Tl temationsl 7% iHER 10047 10000 10000 - S0 00 EEREES
Trading Co, Ltd(Fb) HK Registered captal HKD100 Saleof chemica producs

Hongkong Talli Intemational
Trading Co, Ltd. (Note b)

REARE e iHhax NEEG00007 8400 #1600 1600 10000 0000 EEREERMETH

Dongyue Organosilicon PRC Regstered capital RMB630,000 Manufacture and sale of
organoslicon materia
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38. XA R B A A (&) 38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)
GUENET:+ 4 B&fi/ RAARRFERERLH KRk
WRATER €863 Fis B8R Bl e 3 3 REELA  IERE
WEE - NuE wsE 04E N5E NuE
r % % % ) % %
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest
orregistration/  Class of registered held by the Company Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation share held share capital Directly Indirectly held by the Company  Principal activities
215 2014 215 014 215 2014
000 % % % % % %
REARELEAILT T ifiEx ARET000T - - S0 S0 S0 S0 BEREEEAENE
BRAF PRC Registered capia RVBT0,00 Manufacture and sale of
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak anhydrous fluoride

Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd.

FeEARERRLA Gl iftan ARBIO0T - -8 0 800 N0 BERHESR
(k) RC Registered captal RVB9000 Menufacture and saleof
(hifeng HuaSheng Mining fluorite

(o, Ltd. (Note ¢

RELREANEERDS o AR AEBS0007T - - 10000 000 10000 0000 EEREERR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue PRC Registered captal RMB30,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chericals Co, Ltd. fluorite
URREXARSHERAT 4 & ARE115107 - SE0 S0 S0 S0 HEREEREE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe PRC Regstered capital RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chernicals Co, Ltd. sficone rubber
UFREHAERARAT P & ARE8000T - - 10000 0000 10000 000 HERE
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Registered capital RIBS0000 Property development

Property Co, Ltd.

ERREEAREAERLT A &% ARES00T - - 10000 100 10000 0000 EERIER
Huangtal Dongyue PRC Registered capital MBS, 000 Sale of chemical products

Intemational Trade Co, Ltd.

EERR E AR ARE 10007 - S10000 10000 10000 10000 EEREEAEEAT

Huaia Shenzhou e Registered captal RIBI0000 {tm
Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
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38. XA FEIME A RIS (&) 38. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)
REL  MEBARMERITIMERES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
FrEdRE B AR ABRATE - of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.
BdsE - Notes:
@) RERFBACIERABDNREZ2015F12A8 (@ Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd had increased its
INAIEFEEEINEFMERE ARK12,667,000 registered capital to RMB12,667,000 during the year end 31 December
T e 2015.
(b) HongKong Taili International Co., Ltd.& R &% (b)  HongKong Taili International Co., Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of Dongyue
E100%M B AR - BARABR2014F6 A3H K Group, has been set up by the Company on 3 June 2014
$7 o
(© FREEIFBEFBRARREZ2014F12831H (¢  Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd had increased its registered capital to
1IEFEIEMNEFME AR ZE A R%9,000,0007T ° RMB9,000,000 during the year end 31 December 2014.
39. A T BT I AR R R AR 39.Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company
20154 20144
AR¥T T AREET T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
RHB A RRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,524,547 1,523,881
Al ERE Available-for-sale investments 126,256 126,256
RITEBR RIS Bank balances and cash 31,636 15,444
HimghEE Other current assets 64,914 145,613
EtmeaE Other current liabilities (69,646) (63,546)
Hi3EmsaE Other non-current liabilities (33,512) (94,668)
1,644,195 1,652,980
[N Share capital 200,540 200,922
FECIES) Reserves (Note) 1,443,655 1,452,058
1,644,195 1,652,980
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39. A A B B AR R R BT (AR

40

41

182

39.Summarised statement of financial

position of the Company (Continued)

MiE - Note:
EEEE Movement in the reserves:
RIDEE BRERFE BEXRE KREEF o
AREFTIT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Share
Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2014F1 A1 B & Balance at 1 January 2014 1,236,038 345,787 200,344 (321,972) 1,460,197
FREMNREEB AL Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 101,088 101,088
EARE Dividends paid = = = (143,315) (143,315)
R IEREE 2 AR TS 5008 Recognition of equity-settled
shared-based payments - 36,532 - - 36,532
AR ESEE ) Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,444) - - - (2,444)
201412 A31 B &gk Balance at 31 December 2014 1,233,594 382,319 200,344 (364,199) 1,452,058
FREHNREEB AL Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 140,440 140,440
ENRE Dividends paid - - - (151,746)  (151,746)
TR LE S 7 LARR (0 S 308 Recognition of equity-settled
shared-based payments - 9,525 - - 9,525
B& o] N 5 s AR (D Shares repurchased and cancelled (6,622) = = = (6,622)
2015F12A31 B Balance at 31 December 2015 1,226,972 391,844 200,344 (375,505) 1,443,655

e &

ETHUREBECTEHR ISR
A B ARBESTE
H—EAREEFEVBMKARLL -

ZEHHIA - BEEZRA

HESRSPBER

EE2e7201754 A28 Bt & K& B TR 4R
=l

9

HE -

40. Comparative amounts

N R=FN: T

the consolidated financial statements.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current year presentation. In the opinion of the Directors,
such reclassifications provide a more appropriate presentation on

41.Approval of the consolidated financial

statements

REEBERAE —2-1FFR

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 April 2017.



hFEMFEBE

Five-Year Financial Summary

BEERAEE Assets and liabilities
M12A318
As at 31 December
20114 20126 20134 2014%F 20155
ARETE AREFTE ARETT ARETT AR%ETR
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEAE Total Assets 9,128,932 8,777,989 10,032,631 12,003,560 11,500,728
SEHE Total Liabilities (4,053,636) (3,551,131) (4,521,803) (6,105,756) (6,428,353)
5,075,296 5,226,858 5,510,828 5,897,804 5,072,375
FAREE ANELES Equity attributable to Owners

of the Company 4,783,088 4948315 5,266,849 5,640,807 4,801,539
FERRRES Non-controlling interests 292,208 278,543 243,979 256,997 270,836
5,075,296 5,226,858 5,510,828 5,897,804 5,072,375
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Five-Year Financial Summary

MRS Financial results
BZE12R31HLEEE
Year ended 31 December
2011 20128 20136 20145 20155
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETx
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 10,165,200 7,050,822 6,782,814 7,599,696 7,032,486
FEER AR Cost of sales (6,126,913) (5,367,436) (5,686,752) (6,383,611) (5,863,519)
E Gross profit 4,038,287 1,683,386 1,096,062 1,216,085 1,168,967
Hh A Other income 66,058 117817 178186 290,501 343,949
DEMEERST REFEE  Distribution and selling expenses
and intangible asset (211,849) (209,912) (253,976) (251,209) (251,284)
THR X Administrative expenses (590,984) (367,203) (298.483) (289,791) (261,116)
| EERE Impairment of intangible assets - - - - (40,000)
WEEE = Assets written off - - - - (1,478,200)
MERFHERS Research and development expenses (9,603) (33,764) (71,668) (73,398) (69,797)
BB AR Finance costs (150,277) (136,076) (89,065) (201,441) (208,663)
iR NG E Share of results of associates (201) 324 445 283 (573)
BRBLAT R Profit before tax 3141431 1,054,572 561,501 691,030 (796,717)
FrgHi X Income tax expense (880,550) (347,509) (124,275) (194,034) 115,780
AEERRNR2EBWALLE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 2,260,881 707,063 437,226 496,996 (680,937)
TESAEERFR2EBA Profit and total comprehensive
(%) 4% income (expense) attributable to:
RAREARA Owners of the Company 2,189,861 713,056 465,898 483,276 (690,479)
JEER AR R Non-controlling interests 71,020 (5993) (28672) 13,720 9,542
2,260,881 707,063 437,226 496,996 (680,937)
184 REKEEERAT —T—HFFH



A ER

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O Box 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman lIslands
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SRIESEAE
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.OBox 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, AXA Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi

Mr. CUI Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Dr. FENG Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. ZHANG lJian
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Corporate Information

BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
TRERE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

EREREE Mr. YUE Rundong

NEME Company secretary

BrEEL T Ms. Chung Tak Lai

REREK Authorized representatives
HEEE Mr. FU Kwan

BEELL Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

EREES Audit committee
TRIBSEE(EE) Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
BB LA Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

EREREE Mr. YUE Rundong

FMEES Remuneration committee
BEBEILE(EE) Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
TRIEAAE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
RIERFEAE Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

REZESE Nomination committee
REREE(EE) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
TRIEBEAE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
THEEBA Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

TEEREZS Corporate Governance Committee
REREE(EE) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
EFEE Mr. LIU Chuangi

IEEE S (R20174E5 52 H BFIF)
SRS A (RO01 74F5 H2 HEZ(F)
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands
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REEHR

Corporate Information

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyung
Mr. Yue Rundong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Ltd.
Zibo Branch

107 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
12th Floor, Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Baker & McKenzie Hong Kong

Stock code
189
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